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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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Corporate Information 2 8 & R continued #)
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 [E 57 i &R D 17

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) continued to focus on conducting
money lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group's average loan balance decreased from approximately HK$961.89
million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$941.11 million as at
31 December 2020.

Since the outbreak of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") in early
2020, it has grown into a global pandemic during the first quarter of 2020.
The business environment of the Group has been affected by the worsening
economy caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. For the money lending business,
to protect the health of the valued customers and employees of the Group,
most of the loan applications have been processed online during the year
under review. The prevailing adverse financial and economic condition
caused by the COVID-19 pandemic has posed negative impacts on the
financial position and repayment ability of the Group’s customers and the
resulting uncertainties may continue to bring adverse impact to the business
performance of the Group in the short term. The impact of the COVID-19
outbreak on the business performance of the Group continued to deteriorate
in the fourth quarter of 2020, resulting in an increase in impairment loss on
loans receivables by approximately 79.57% for the year ended 31 December
2020 as compared to the corresponding period in 2019. The Group expects
that such challenging and unpredictable environment may affect the loan
demand and lending risks of the Group. Therefore, the Group will continue to
evaluate its risk management measures and ensure a proper balance between
return and risk in the long run. To maintain its loan portfolio, the Group will
continue to adopt prudent and cautious approaches, in particular, during the
loan assessment and approval process. The Group will also keep on closely
monitoring the repayment performance of its loan portfolio and evaluating the
repayment ability of the customers.

The Group had also conducted assessment on liquidity positions and working
capital sufficiency of the Group to evaluate the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic on the business of the Group. After considering the nature of the
money lending business which has no minimum capital requirement, the size
of the Company and the Group’s bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$14.38 million as at 31 December 2020, it was considered that the
Company would have sufficient funds to maintain its operations under the

prevailing economic environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

At the same time, the Group has endeavoured to control its expenses by
taking various measures in budget control and monitoring in view of the
negative impacts caused by the COVID-19. The Group will continue to pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 pandemic and adopt
appropriate measures to minimise its impact on the financial position and

business operations of the Group.

Following the cessation of the securities brokerage and margin financing
business of the Group (”Securities Brokerage Business”) in mid-August
2019, the Group has continued to engage in proprietary investment in listed
securities. The Company will explore further potential investment opportunities,
including but not limited to investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed
equity securities or project-based investments, subject to the prevailing
market condition and taking into account the interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. In pursuing the investment opportunities, the Group
will take into account the potential returns and seek to minimise the possible

market risks and liquidity risks.

Looking forward, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders and
enhance its position in the competitive industry, the Group will continue to
strive for maintaining revenue and credit quality on the basis of its experience
in money lending business. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor its
capital base from time to time to ensure sufficient funding is maintained

through various means for capturing different potential opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group's revenue for the year under review was derived from interest

received from the provision of various types of loan products to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue generated was
approximately HK$38.02 million, representing a decrease of approximately
57.23% from the revenue of approximately HK$88.88 million recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2019. As a result of the cessation of the Securities
Brokerage Business in mid-August 2019, there was no commission income
from securities brokerage services for the year under review (for the year ended

31 December 2019: negligible).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5% &2 8T continued #)

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in accrued WZHBALETEEHABEFES TR
interest on certain past due loans receivables which were matured or impaired & &1 2 & U & 5K 89 FE 51 F S0 D BT 8 AR &) 15
during the year under review. The Company will continue to monitor the #ETRKEREREINEERRE NWEFESE
credit risk of the loans receivables from time to time and modify its credit 2015 & :F4% K BS 4% 45 6 o

assessments and control measures when necessary.

Comparison of Revenue from Secured and Unsecured Loans in
2019 and 2020
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2020 2019
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HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Unsecured loans EEAER
Personal loans BAER 26,532 58,805
Corporate loans BEEXR 2,581 6,615
Foreign domestic workers loans IMERERIER 3,205 5,413
Sub-total Ui 32,318 70,833
Secured loans ARPER
First property mortgage loans BRAYERBER 1,532 3,257
Subordinated property mortgage loans FERMERIBER 332 603
Other secured loans HtnBHEARER 3,835 14,183
Sub-total INEE 5,699 18,043
Total st 38,017 88,876
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I & 5V 5@ & 2D M «continued #)

NET INTEREST MARGIN

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 8.96% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 in respect of its money lending business.

The above net interest margin represented the ratio of net interest income
to the average balance of gross loans receivables as at the end of the year
under review after deducting certain amount of past due loans receivables
which were matured or impaired during the year under review. The net interest
margin calculated on the same basis for the corresponding period last year was
approximately 9.84%.

In respect of unsecured loans, the net interest margin decreased from
approximately 9.93% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
9.10% for the year ended 31 December 2020. Meanwhile, net interest margin
in respect of secured loans decreased from approximately 9.50% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 8.45% for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The net interest margin was maintained at a low level which reflects the
Group’s pricing strategy under the low interest rate environment in the
competitive money lending industry.

Net interest margin
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER LOSSES

The Group's other income recorded an increase from approximately HK$0.04
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately HK$1.94
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 which was mainly attributable
to the government subsidy received under the Employment Support Scheme
launched by the government of Hong Kong under the second round of the

" Anti-epidemic Fund” during the year under review.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other losses of approximately HK$3.10
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to other losses
of approximately HK$3.95 million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
The decrease in other losses was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair
value loss from investment in listed securities (i.e. financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss) during the year under review.

Details of other income and other losses are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year under review mainly
comprised employment expenses, depreciation charges and the Directors’
and officers’ insurance premium. Employment expenses included directors’
emoluments, employees’ salaries, bonuses, mandatory and voluntary provident
fund contributions, and insurance premium for employees, etc. Administrative
expenses also included occupancy costs and repair and maintenance etc.
Occupancy costs included management fees, government rent and rates as

well as utilities expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &I & 5V 5@ & 2D M «continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s administrative expenses
decreased and recorded at approximately HK$25.43 million as compared
to approximately HK$28.06 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
which was mainly attributable to the decrease in employment expenses and
depreciation charges for the year under review.

Administrative expenses

BE-_ZTZ-_ZTF+_A=Z=+—HBLEE X&
B &) 77 Bk B 2Rk > 37 8% 15 £925,430,0005% 7T+
HE-"T-NE+-_A=+t-BLEENDNA
28,060,000 L TTHAZ ML X EZHREEF
ERNEERIRTEERRIMHE -

TBIRX
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Employment expenses EEMX 16,209 17,424
Occupancy costs MHAKA 808 978
Depreciation charges WESH 6,175 7,749
Repair and maintenance and others HEREREMAS 611 467
Insurance premium R & 1,626 1,438
Total st 25,429 28,056

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS RECEIVABLES

The Group's impairment losses mainly relate to expected credit loss (“ECL")
allowance for loans receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessment is done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate. The ECL on loans
receivables are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans receivables of approximately HK$360.19 million as compared to
approximately HK$200.58 million for the corresponding period in 2019. The
significant increase in impairment loss on loans receivables is principally due
to an increase in loans receivables which have past due during the year ended
31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I8 & 59 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

The impairment loss of approximately HK$360.19 million for the year under
review mainly derived from unsecured loans, involving individual and corporate
borrowers, with principal amounts ranging from HK$7,000 to HK$40 million
for unsecured personal loans and from HK$4 million to HK$18 million for
unsecured corporate loans. The tenure of the majority of the above unsecured
loans ranged from 3 to 36 months and the effective interest rates ranged from
6.5% per annum to 54% per annum. Secured loans accounted for around
20% of the impairment loss and were secured by equity interest in listed
companies and private companies.

The Group performs collective assessment on impairment allowance for the
loans receivables at least on a quarterly basis by dividing its loans receivables
into different groups according to the loan types, with each loan type sharing
similar credit risk characteristics, and calculates the ECL for each loan type.
The measurement of impairment allowance for collective assessment is mainly
based on the amount of loans receivables of each loan type at a point of time
and will take into account the probability of default (which may be affected by
the duration of delinquency and is calculated by using the adjusted transition
rate as the key input from the Markov Chain Model) and loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default which is estimated with
reference to the loans receivables’ historical bad debt recovery rate and cash
flows from the realisation of its collateral, if any) pertaining to that particular
loan type, which are derived from the assessment made by the external
professional valuer as at the latest year-end date based on the historical
repayment performance of different loan types and adjusted by forward-
looking information such as the economic and financial environment and

expected unemployment rate, etc.

The Group also performs monthly individual assessment on impairment
allowance for the loans receivables. For individual assessment, the amount of
impairment allowance on loans receivables will be considered on a case-by-
case basis by way of discounted cash flow, taking into account, among other
factors, the expected date of recovery and the fair value of the collateral (if
any).

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment of
financial assets (including loans receivables) and the financial risk management
policies in respect of loans receivables, please refer to section (F) of note 4 and
section (B) of note 30 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Credit risk assessments were performed by the Group before each loan was
advanced. Identity checks, financial background checks and, where applicable,
relevant public searches (such as litigation search, company search and
land search) were conducted on the borrowers and, where applicable, the
guarantor and/or the underlying companies whose shares were charged to the
Group as security. In credit assessment, the Company will normally take into
account factors including, but not limited to, personal/financial background
and repayment ability of the borrowers, internal and external credit checking
results, the borrowers’ repayment record in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral and the availability of
any guarantee. During the year under review, the Group was satisfied with the
credit worthiness and the repayment ability of the borrowers after conducting
the credit risk assessment.
The Group also adopts a “two eyes” process requiring credit approval at
successively higher levels or by the credit committee of the board of Directors
("Board”) depending on, among other things, the size and nature of the

proposed transactions.

Subsequent to the drawdown of loans, to ensure that loans repayments are
punctual and past due accounts are handled efficiently, the Group actively
reviews and monitors the loan repayment status under the supervision of the
management on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the Group has closely monitored the loans
receivables for the purpose of assessing credit risk and has put more effort
in the collection procedures of the loans receivables, such as making phone
calls and sending reminders to the relevant customers from time to time. The
Company may also negotiate with customers on the repayment arrangements
on a case-by-case basis according to the circumstances of the customers,
especially during the COVID-19 pandemic. Legal actions may be brought
against the relevant customers depending on the actual circumstances on a
case-by-case basis.

During the collection procedures in the year under review, the Group discovered
that certain customers experienced difficulties in repayments which may have
arisen due to the recent changes in the economic and financial environment
and other personal reasons. Among other factors, the expected longer period
of recovery and the lower possibility of full repayment of the loans receivables
had led to a significant increase in credit risk, thereby significantly increasing
the impairment loss on loans receivables for the year ended 31 December 2020
which accounts for expected credit losses. The uncertainty in the repayment
performance of certain customers of the Group has also led to a significant
increase in the impairment loss on loans receivables on individual assessment
during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Impairment loss on loans receivables

FE W B 8 B 5 46

Impairment allowances for loans receivables on

2020
—g-%x

HK$’'000
F#ET

T8 I Ak ) JE B OB E B

individual assessment 414,963 4,328
Impairment allowances for loans receivables on SRTENEREZRAERE

collective assessment (54,770) 196,253
Total @st 360,193 200,581

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The Group's other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 mainly comprised legal and professional fees, audit fees, other general
expenses and advertising and promotion expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$10.37 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2020 decreased to approximately HK$9.36 million, which was mainly owing
to the decrease in legal and professional fees as well as the decrease in
advertising and promotion expenses.

Other operating expenses

H g Em

AEEBRE_ T _EF+ A=+ -HLFED
HMRERAXTERREZRREXER Bt E
A HEt—RASXARES REERX -

BEBEE - ET-AF+_A=1+—BLEEH
10,370,000 Tk HE-T T F+ =
A=+ BLEFEMNEMEERIBM P EL
9,360,000 L  FZHMNERREXERFB LU
RESREERIR DA

HibE2HEX

2020

—EC-EE

HK$'000

TER
Legal and professional fees ERREEER 3,192 3,972
Audit fees EFTBR 780 805
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERMAS 567 995
Other general expenses Hih— A 4,820 4,601
Total @zt 9,359 10,373

E—EAeREERRAR —T_ZTFFR
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly
comprised interest expenses on lease liabilities, interest expenses on
consideration payable and interest expenses on bond payable. Finance costs
slightly increased and recorded at approximately HK$0.27 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, as compared to approximately HK$0.19 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

Finance costs

MBER

AEBEBE-_T_TF+_A=+—HLFEHXN
MBER FTZREHEAENMERY  BHR
ENMNERIRENELENFERAI BEZT
—EF+ A+ ALEE HEBRAEME
N ER1549270,0008 L MBEE-_T—NLF+=
A=+—HIFEA]4/190,0007 T

MBEER
2020 2019
—EC-EE —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENNERX 97 187
Interest expenses on consideration payable ERRENTERXS 95 -
Interest expenses on bond payable FETEH B F S H X 81 -
Total st 273 187

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year under review, the Group recorded a significant increase in the
consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$367.61 million as compared to the consolidated loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$132.89 million for the year ended
31 December 2019, which is principally due to (i) a decrease in revenue for
the year under review and (ii) a significant increase in impairment loss on loans
receivables for the year under review as disclosed under the paragraphs headed
“Revenue” and “Impairment Loss on Loans Receivables” above.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year under review, the Group financed its operations by cash flow from
operating activities and proceeds from issuance of bond.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$14.38 million (31 December 2019: approximately HK$17.08
million), all of which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no
minimum capital requirement for the Group's principal money lending business.
The Board considers that the cash level of the Group as at 31 December 2020
was satisfactory in terms of fund utilisation.

There was no bank borrowing as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a bond payable in the principal
amount of HK$10 million. As for the details of the bond payable, please refer
to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the net current assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$237.71 million (31 December 2019: approximately
HK$668.87 million) and the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets
to current liabilities, was approximately 17.35 times (31 December 2019:
approximately 76.22 times). The drop in current ratio was mainly attributable
to a decrease in current portion of loans receivables and an increase in bond
payable for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group adopted a treasury policy with the aims to utilise the surplus and/or
idle funds of the Group and to achieve capital appreciation in the long-term.
Under the treasury policy, the Group may invest in diversified investment
products which the Board thinks fit, including but not limited to government
bonds, debt instruments and listed equity securities on the Stock Exchange.

Where appropriate, the Group may apply for loans and/or credit facilities from
independent third parties and banks and may conduct fund raising activities by
issuing equity shares and/or loan notes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there had been no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group. The Group had no specific future plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any significant investments
exceeding 5% of the total asset value of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis 2 /E 515

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of 31 staff (as at
31 December 2019: 43 staff). Total remuneration of employees (including
directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$15.88 million (for the year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately HK$17.12 million). The Group’s remuneration policies are
formulated on the basis of performance, qualifications and experience of
individual employees and with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group comprise monthly
fixed salaries and discretionary year-end bonus which may be given to
employees based on their individual performance as recognition of and reward
for their contributions. The employees are also entitled to participate in the
share option scheme adopted by the Company (“Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants,
including the employees, who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group adopted a staff training and development policy with the aims
to improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high
quality staff training forms the foundation of the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information in relation to
money lending, anti-money laundering (“AML") and anti-corruption with
reference to the fast-changing market environment, the business objectives of
the Group and the relevant requirements of the regulatory bodies.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged loans receivables with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$32 million as security for a bond
issued by the Group during the year under review. Further details of the
pledge of loans receivables and the bond are set out in notes 20 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being total liabilities less bank and
cash balances) divided by the sum of the adjusted capital (being the share
capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and other reserves) and net debt.

The Group recorded a net debt of approximately HK$2.20 million as at
31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: net cash of approximately
HK$8.19 million). Therefore, the gearing ratio was approximately 0.44% as at
31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately -0.95%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in the
money lending business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and cost of business
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to the risk
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal. Hence,
no financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year ended

31 December 2020.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group's contingent liabilities are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended since 24 November
2017 pursuant to the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC”) made under Section 8(1) of the Securities and Futures
(Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the Laws of Hong Kong) and will
remain suspended until further notice.

Announcements were made by the Company on 1 August 2018, 1 November
2018, 1 February 2019, 2 May 2019, 1 August 2019, 1 November 2019,
31 January 2020, 29 April 2020, 31 July 2020, 30 October 2020 and 1
February 2021 pursuant to Rule 17.26A of the GEM Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2019,
the Stock Exchange has withheld exercising its right to delist the Company
although trading in its shares remained suspended on 31 July 2019. As such,
trading in the shares of the Company will continue to be suspended until
further notice.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1 February 2021,
the Company has made further submission to the Enforcement Division of the
SFC on 31 December 2020 and has continued its effort in communicating with
and addressing the concern of the SFC with a view to achieving a resumption
of trading of its shares as soon as possible. The Company’s trade resumption
application is still pending and the Company is not in a position to provide
any concrete resumption timeframe at this stage. The Company and its legal
representatives will closely follow up with this matter.
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report (“CG Report”) for the year ended
31 December 2020. This CG Report highlights the key corporate governance
practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, save for the code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9, A.6.5 and E.1.2 of the
CG Code as detailed below, the Company had complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code and no other deviation from the CG Code
during the year had been noted by the Company.

Details of the deviations from code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9, A.6.5 and E.1.2
of the CG Code are set out under the paragraphs headed "“Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer”, "Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development Programme” and “Communications With Shareholders And
Investors And Investor Relations” in this CG Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020. No incident of non-compliance
during the year was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long-term strategy, determining and approving the Group’s
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group's policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board also communicates with the shareholders of the Company
and regulatory bodies and makes recommendation to the shareholders on final
dividend and approves the declaration of any interim dividend.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development of
the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules that the Board includes at least three independent non-executive
Directors, which represents at least one-third of the Board and at least one of
the independent non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors” from pages 39 to 41 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), management staff and the compliance
officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company is in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the
expense of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report 1R E B continued #)

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and management staff of the Company who regularly review the
financial results and performance of the Group and make financial and
operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and plans approved
by the Board.

There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between
members of the Board and between the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (”Chief Executive Officer”).

ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual
general meeting ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the shareholders in
general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of shareholders of the Company after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of no more than three years. The Company has also issued
a letter of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors
for a term of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual and code provisions A.2.2 to A.2.9 set out the main responsibilities
of the chairman. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
11 March 2020, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, a former executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, passed away on 9 March 2020. Since then and up
to the date of this report, the position of the Chairman has remained vacant.
Compliance with code provisions A.2.1 to A.2.9 was therefore not possible
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Notwithstanding the absence of a Chairman, the Board, which comprises
experienced Directors who meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operation of the Group, has been able to continue performing its functions
effectively and efficiently. In view of the simple structure of the Company,
significant decisions are made by the Board as a whole while the daily
operation and management are monitored by the Chief Executive Officer.
Before each Board meeting, all Directors receive adequate information and
relevant documents in a timely manner and are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings. All Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors, have made different contributions to the issues discussed
at the Board meetings and the Board was able to make and implement
decisions promptly in response to the changing environment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong acted as the
Chief Executive Officer until his resignation on 19 March 2020 and Ms. Ho
Yuen May May was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on the same date.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for overseeing the Company’s day-to-
day management and operations as well as to implement objectives, strategies
and policies approved and delegated by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. As at the date of
this CG Report, the Company had five independent non-executive Directors
and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for

a term of two years.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year on a
quarterly basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance.
For other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of significant
issues in relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given in a

reasonable time in advance.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda and
the accompanying board papers at least three days in advance or such other
period as agreed in order to allow the Directors to include any other matters
in the agenda that are required to be discussed or resolved at the meeting. To
enable the Directors to make informed decisions, adequate and appropriate
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are also sent to all
Directors in a timely manner. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any director
who or whose close associates (or associates for connected transactions) have
a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any other proposal to
be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting on the relevant

resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comments
within reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is made
available to them for their review and signing.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings and general
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the following

table:

Total number of meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2020

Name of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (former Chairman) —
deceased on 9 March 2020

Ms. Xie Si

Mr. Wong Kai Lun

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

Ms. Ho Yuen May May — appointed as an executive
Director on 7 October 2020

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain

Mr. Li Long

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
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REBE-_Z_ZTF+_A=+—-BLEFE 5F
EHEEES R RRRRENRERIIMT

Number of meetings attended/number

of meetings held during the tenure of

the relevant Director for the year
ended 31 December 2020
HESEHRIY EHAES
RBE-_FT-_TF+-A=+—HLFEZ
EHRRBITHERRE

Board meeting

EETEH
NRBE_FT_-FF
+=A=+—HBLEER
EITHERERY 9
EENA
BITES
TERHKE (FIHEERE)
—R-ZFE-FF
Z AN AR 0/0
EiE e 2/9
e 9/9
BRIz 9/9
MmBLtr -—-R_F-FF
TALHEZFRBHNTEF 0/0
BIAFRTES
X E T+ 9/9
FTEERE 9/9
PRIBEE A 9/9
FREE 9/9
ZERIASLE 9/9

E—ERAEREEFRAF

General meeting

BRRXE
1

0/0

11

11

11

0/0

11

11

11

11

11

—T_TFFER
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DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director of an issuer should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment. Ms. Ho Yuen May May, an executive Director who
was appointed during the year ended 31 December 2020, had received tailored
induction package covering topics such as responsibilities of directors of listed
companies as well as continuing obligations and compliance requirements of

listed companies under the GEM Listing Rules.

Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the
Board remain informed and relevant, during the year ended 31 December
2020, the Directors, namely Ms. Xie Si, Mr. Wong Kai Lun, Ms. Lai Szu Yu,
Ms. Ho Yuen May May, Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung
Tak Alain, Mr. Li Long and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, had participated in
continuous professional development by attending training courses provided
by professional firms or institutions, or reading materials provided by the
Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements. Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, a former executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, passed away on 9 March 2020 and did not attend any
directors’ training during his tenure as a Director for the period from 1 January
2020 to 9 March 2020. Save as disclosed above, all Directors confirmed that
they had complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the

year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the audit committee comprised four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo (chairman of the audit
committee), Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan Tung Tak

Alain.
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The audit committee held 4 meetings during the year ended 31 December
2020. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance record of
each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out below:

HE-_T_TF+_A=+—BHLLFE BEKZ
BEedRANRERE - BREZEGHERREKER
BHE-_T-_ZTF+_A=+—BHLEFERTHE
BREEgEZNLELHERINAT

Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended

31 December 2020

HEERRE 8
BRERBE_T_FF
+=A=+—H8
IEEFEZEHA
FREITHE R R
Total number of meetings held during the year RBE-_F-¥F+-A=+—H

ended 31 December 2020 I EFERRITHERERY 4
Name of committee members EEEREKS
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo BRRBREE (BRZEESTFE)

(chairman of the audit committee) 4/4
Dr. Fung Kam Man B E L 4/4
Mr. Wang Zhiwei TEEEE 4/4
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain PRIBEE A 4/4

The primary function of the audit committee is to monitor integrity of the
Company'’s financial statements, financial reports and accounts and to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Company and its
subsidiaries. It also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors and reviews the Company’s
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems (“RM & IC
Systems”) on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group’s
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, the RM & IC Systems and the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function. It has discussed with the management on the RM & IC Systems
to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have effective
systems. The audit committee has also made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the external auditors after reviewing the scope of work

offered, taking into account their remuneration and terms of engagement.

During the year under review, the Board did not take a different view from the
audit committee on the appointment of external auditors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has complied with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the audit committee comprises non-
executive Directors only, with a minimum of three members, at least one of
whom is an independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director

and the majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
nomination committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain (chairman of the nomination committee),
Dr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei, and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.

The nomination committee held 4 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020. The composition of the nomination committee and the
attendance record of each member at the nomination committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

REBEEZZ=_TF+_A=+—RHLEFERN K
SBEEETGEMEMMAIES 281 NEZE B
CRABFINTESF PRSI =ZEBKE HF5D
—ZAEABEENEEER SEBREENE
BN B EREERNBUENTES UK
ERZESTHB LN TESEETEIEREESR
FHREBABUIFNTES -

REZEEN T —FRZ HEEBEHE

HECEERFT -RAREAH REEEEAH
MEBIIFATES BRBREE (REZES
IFE) BRXEL EFEREERERRELHE
B o

BE_Z-ZF+-_A=+"RHLFE RBRZ
BIOOREZ-REZEGERREKNER

ESZ:KE T_EFT A=t HLFERTHE

AEREGERNHECERINNT:

Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended

31 December 2020

HEE R RS
RERBE_T-FF
+=-A=+—H
IEEEZEHR
PR fTHI SRR E
Total number of meetings held during the year REBEE-_F-F#+=-A=+—H
ended 31 December 2020 IEEEERRTHERERY 4
Name of committee members ZEENEKSE
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (former chairman of the nomination Z= &34t % & (ﬁ%%?ﬁ 2 HIEEE)
committee) — deceased on 9 March 2020 —RZFEZFF=HLABTY 0/0
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain (chairman of the nomination BRBEEE (1BEZESF/E)
committee) — with effect from 23 March 2020 - E_FFZH - ZHBELEXK 4/4
Dr. Fung Kam Man Vit g 4/4
Mr. Wang Zhiwei FREMALEE 4/4
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo EREELE 4/4
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The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, re-appointment or
re-designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessment
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013 which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The board diversity
policy was revised in January 2019. The Company considers that diversity of
perspectives can be achieved through consideration of a number of measurable
objectives including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, culture and
educational background, skills, professional experience, knowledge, length of
service and other factors that the Company deems relevant. Such measurable
objectives for diversity have been taken into account in determining
appointments to the Board and the continuation of those appointments to
achieve the optimum composition of the Board. The nomination committee
will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives on an annual basis and will
recommend changes to the measurable objectives if it considers necessary to

the Board for adoption.

The Company also adopted a nomination policy which came into effect in
January 2019. The nomination policy sets out the selection criteria in assessing
the suitability of a proposed candidate as Director. Such criteria include but
are not limited to academic background, qualifications, relevant experiences
in the industry, character and integrity of the proposed candidate. Suitable
candidate can be nominated by any Director for the nomination committee’s
consideration. Nomination committee will evaluate the personal profile of the
candidate based on the selection criteria as set out in the nomination policy
and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of each proposed candidate.
After comprehensive assessment, the nomination committee will then make
appropriate recommendations to the Board for approval. All appointments
of Directors will ultimately be based on merit while taking into account the
measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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The nomination committee will review the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy on a regular basis, discuss any revision that may be required
and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Since Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, the former Chairman, passed away on
9 March 2020, the nomination committee has been paying effort in identifying
candidates suitably qualified to fill the vacancy. As at the date of this CG
Report, the position of Chairman remained vacant. Despite such vacancy, the
nomination committee believes that with the support of experienced and
high-calibre individuals including but not limited to the executive Directors,
the balance of power and authority has been adequately maintained by the

operation of the Board as a whole.

During the year under review, the nomination committee also discussed on
the appropriate candidate for the position of Chief Executive Officer in view of
the resignation of the former Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong.
After having reviewed the personal profile, experience and qualifications of
Ms. Ho Yuen May May, the nomination committee made recommendations
to the Board for the appointment of Ms. Ho Yuen May May as the new Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 19 March 2020. The nomination committee
also assessed and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
during the year under review. On 7 October 2020, having made due regard to
the board diversity policy and the nomination policy, the nomination committee
further recommended to the Board the appointment of Ms. Ho Yuen May
May as an executive Director. The nomination committee considered that an
appropriate balance of diversity was maintained on the Board, which comprised
members of both gender and of different qualifications and experience. In
addition, the nomination committee also assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors as well as discussed on and reviewed the
retirement and re-election of Directors and other relevant issues.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of

remuneration committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee),
Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo.

The remuneration committee held 5 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2020. The composition of the remuneration committee and the
attendance record of each member at the remuneration committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below:

Total number of meetings held during the year
ended 31 December 2020

Name of committee members
Dr. Fung Kam Man
(chairman of the remuneration committee)
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim — deceased on 9 March 2020
Mr. Wang Zhiwei
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and ensure
none of the Directors or any of their associates will determine his/her own

remuneration.

The remuneration committee adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code and is authorised to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages as well as the terms of the
service contracts of the executive Directors and senior management of the
Company. In addition, during the year under review, it has met to review the
remuneration policy and structure and to assess the performance of Directors.
It also reviewed the remuneration package and service agreement of Ms. Ho
Yuen May May in view of her appointment as the Chief Executive Officer and
an executive Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the former Chief Executive Officer,
Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, and the current Chief Executive Officer, Ms. Ho Yuen
May May, were the only members of the senior management other than the
Directors. For details of their remuneration, please refer to note 14(A) to the
consolidated financial statements.

CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of better
management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of the
credit committee are responsible for, among other things, enacting marketing
strategy and issuing lending guidelines from time to time in line with the
market change, approving and overseeing the Group’s credit policy, monitoring
the performance of credit officers and the quality of the loans and providing
periodical reports to the Board for review. As at the date of this report, the
credit committee comprised four executive Directors, namely Ms. Xie Si,
Mr. Wong Kai Lun, Ms. Lai Szu Yu and Ms. Ho Yuen May May.
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The credit committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31 December
2020. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance record
of each member at the credit committee meeting held during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out below:

ﬁ% /;%: 5|:] iﬁ% (continued #&)

HE-_T_TF+_A=+—BHULFE EF&Z
BERT-—REZ - EEZEGHERREKER
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—BILFEETHE
BEZEge3MEECHERINT:

Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended

31 December 2020
HEEHRE EHA
BERBE_FT_FF

+=-A=+—H
IFEFEZEHA
FRE TR E R
Total number of meetings held during the year RBE-_F-¥F+-A=+—H
ended 31 December 2020 I EFERRITHERERY 1
Name of committee members EEEHENE
Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim — deceased on 9 March 2020 FHEALEE-R T -TF=ANLAENY 0/0
Ms. Xie Si EiE - dn 0/1
Mr. Wong Kai Lun = A 5 AR 1/1
Ms. Lai Szu Yu BREFLZ L 11
Ms. Ho Yuen May May — appointed as a member of R Et -—-R—FE-_FF+A+H
the credit committee on 7 October 2020 BZFRIEELZEE8HE 0/0

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A compliance committee was established in 2010 serving the corporate
governance function of the Company with the aim to ensure the compliance
of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the
Group from time to time, in particular the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“MLO"), the GEM Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"). The major duties of the compliance committee include to develop
and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors and
to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

corporate governance report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the compliance committee comprised
one executive Director, namely Ms. Lai Szu Yu, and four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance

BE_ZT_TF+_A=T-HLFE ARZ
EER—ANTEF IBESRL ROEEL
FRTEF HEBXEL(AREESERE)

committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei, Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain and Mr. Choy Sze  EE#ME4  FRBELLEMEBREEHERK -
Chung Jojo.
The compliance committee held 4 meetings during the year ended HE_ZT-_ZTE+_-_A=+—HBILEE A#8Z
31 December 2020. The composition of the compliance committee and the E&RITHNAEZ - ARZESHEHRLEKER
attendance record of each member at the compliance committee meetings ®HEZ-ZZ-_ZF+-_A=+—BHILFERTHAE
held during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out below: REEESRNHECLHERINOT
Number of meetings
attended/number of
meetings held during
the tenure of the
relevant member for
the year ended
31 December 2020
HEERRE EEE
RERBE_ZS_FF
+=A=+—H8
IEEFEZEHA
FREITHE R R
Total number of meetings held during the year RBE-_F-_¥F+-A=+—H

ended 31 December 2020 I EFERRITHERERY 4
Name of committee members EEEREKS
Dr. Fung Kam Man HRXEL (EHEEETF/E)

(chairman of the compliance committee) 4/4
Mr. Wang Zhiwei FREMLEE 4/4
Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain PRIEEE A 4/4
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo ERHEEE 4/4
Ms. Lai Szu Yu BRIFLL 4/4

The compliance committee regularly reviews matters regarding the compliance
of the Group with the MLO, the GEM Listing Rules, the SFO and other relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has adopted
relevant compliance manuals which govern the Group’s compliance matters in
relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant
regulations.
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During the year under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has recorded
the issues identified during the review and made several suggestions to the
Board and the management of the Company on issues particularly concerning
internal control, corporate social responsibilities and corporate governance. For
instance, the compliance committee (i) reviewed and monitored the training
and continuous professional development of Directors, senior management
and other employees in respect of compliance matters (including AML training
and anti-corruption training); (i) formulated, reviewed, and monitored the
employees’ code of conduct and compliance manual to synchronise with the
latest applicable laws and regulations and the current practices of the Group;
(iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
of the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance in this CG
Report and recommended the Company to take appropriate actions in response
to the amendments to the GEM Listing Rules in relation to the environmental,
social and governance matters effective from July 2020; and (iv) reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. Also, the Company's internal control systems and the
Company'’s internal audit function’s effectiveness are regularly reviewed by the
compliance committee. The Company has acted and would continue to act on
the recommendations of the compliance committee.

CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

A credit review committee was established in 2018 for the purpose of
enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. The major
duties of the credit review committee include to conduct periodic reviews on
different loan cases based on the credit review report and the past due loan
report prepared by the credit control department for the purpose of monitoring
credit risk. The credit review committee will give recommendations when
it deems fit. The credit review committee will also review the cases of the
approved loans to see whether such loans were approved in accordance with
the credit policy of the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the credit review committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man
(chairman of the credit review committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Chan
Tung Tak Alain.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 87 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider, Ms. Cheang Yee Wah Eva,
as the Company Secretary. She is a Chartered Financial Analysts Charter holder,
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Cheang'’s primary contact person at
the Company was Mr. Wong Kai Lun, an executive Director of the Company.
During the year under review, the Company Secretary has taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 5.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditors of the Company for the audit and non-audit services provided
amounted to HK$780,000 and HK$412,000 respectively. The non-audit services
represented the review of interim results of the Group by the auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the day-
to-day operation and business development of the Group while maintaining
risk at an optimal level.

SYSTEM FEATURES

The RM & IC Systems of the Company are designed to identify and monitor
risks from day-to-day operations and they are embodied by the Board through
the relevant board committees, the management, the departments and the
internal audit function.
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The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM & IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the RM & IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regard,
the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM & IC Systems
established and maintained by the management of the Company at least
annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM & IC Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM &
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and considered
these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system and the RM & IC Systems. It
also develops a regular platform to discuss the RM & IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
maintain effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The audit committee
considers the major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management'’s response to these findings. The audit committee also regularly
reviews the findings and opinions of the internal audit function and the
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM & IC Systems.

Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal
control of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee has
conducted periodic reviews on issues including credit quality of various cases
including cases of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Reviews on current
loan cases are also conducted as a continuous monitoring on credit quality.
Results and findings of the review are submitted to the Board for further
discussion.
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The Internal Audit Function The internal audit function is performed by
Dr. Fung Kam Man, an independent non-executive Director. The internal audit
function generally carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’'s RM & IC Systems.

The Management and Departments The management is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM & IC Systems.
The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for the
Group's policies and manuals on risk management and internal control. For
instance, the loans department of the Group, as the daily operation units, are
responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time to the

management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the disclosure policy and procedures to promote consistent disclosure
practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO. The policy
and procedure set out the mechanism of identifying the potential inside
information and escalating the matters to the Board to decide whether to

make relevant disclosure in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk Assessment and
Measurement

B B R R 5H B

Risk Identification

22, e 58k B

Risk Identification The loans department and the major subsidiaries of
the Group are required to report on material risks identified in the risk
management report (on department or subsidiary level) which is submitted to
the management periodically.

Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk assessment
and measurement involve the participation of management in assessing the
risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk. The management
reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that appropriate
controls and measures are in place or in progress. The management, through
consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes, compiles a risk management
report (on Company level) to the audit committee and the internal audit
function. Following review by the audit committee and the internal audit
function, the company risk management report would be submitted to the
Board.
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Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolve material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
report (on Company level) from time to time. Such measures vary according to

the type of risks or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company's risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM & IC Systems in terms of risk control and mitigation. For instance,
the risk management policy is subject to regular reviews in order to respond
to any significant changes to the products, services or relevant laws and

regulations that might impact the risk exposure of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group's
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding of the Group's business
performance and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing relationship with the Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a communication
platform with its shareholders and investors, where the Group's business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 1/F., O.T.B. Building, Nos.259-265 Des Voeux Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk
for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
According to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. In the absence of the Chairman of
the Board since the decease of Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an executive Director of
the Company, Mr. Wong Kai Lun, was appointed as the chairman of the AGM
held on 24 June 2020 and was available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee also endeavor to be available at the AGM to answer

any questions raised by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no significant change in
the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interests are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation in
AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by post
for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of meeting
contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All registered
shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general meetings of
the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call for special
general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from the said date.

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is
intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights
as mentioned above to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communications with
Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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Biographical Details of Directors E5 ¥ B &

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Xie Si, aged 32, is an executive Director. She joined the Group and was
appointed as a Director in September 2017. Ms. Xie is also a director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Xie graduated from Southwest University of
Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy. Ms. Xie has
over 11 years of experience in banking and financial industry. She has extensive
experiences in providing financial services to the customers, including corporate
and individual clients.

Mr. Wong Kai Lun, aged 43, is an executive Director. He joined the Group
and was appointed as a Director in January 2018. Mr. Wong is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wong has various marketing and
managerial experience in the beauty industry in Hong Kong. He is currently a
marketing manager of Pure Derma Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, which is principally engaged in the medical beauty
business.

Ms. Lai Szu Yu, aged 32, is an executive Director and the compliance officer
of the Company. She joined the Group and was appointed as a Director in
April 2019. Ms. Lai is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Lai
graduated from the University of Southern California in 2011 with a degree
of Bachelor of Arts majoring in Economics. She has different experiences in
financial accounting and education. She currently works in a law firm in Hong
Kong responsible for administration and accounting matters.

Ms. Ho Yuen May May, aged 53, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer. She was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer in March
2020 and was subsequently appointed as a Director in October 2020. Ms. Ho
joined the Group in 2018 and was responsible for the overall management,
business strategy and development of Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Ms. Ho graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1990 with a degree of Bachelor of Social Science
majoring in Journalism and Communications. She has more than 10 years of
experience in the securities industry with extensive management experience, in
particular experience as a responsible officer specialised in Type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity under the SFO.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree of Master
of Science in Financial Management from the University of London and a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of Nottingham.
Dr. Fung has been certified as a Project Management Professional by the
Project Management Institute. He is a certified financial planner certified by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a certified financial planner of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial Planners. Dr. Fung has experience
of more than 27 years in the continuing education and vocational training
field. Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed higher education development and
quality assurance consultant. Dr. Fung was an independent non-executive
director of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited (formerly known as DX.com
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08086), the shares of which are listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, from 1 August 2016 to 2 November 2017. He acted as
the independent non-executive director of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08101), the shares
of which are listed on GEM, from 1 April 2015 to 21 September 2016.

Mr. Wang Zhiwei, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in October 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from the North University
of China (formerly known as Taiyuan Institute of Machinery) in 1990 with a
Bachelor's degree in Mechanical Engineering. Mr. Wang has been qualified as
a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") since December 2000. Mr. Wang has over 17 years of experience
in holding senior executive positions in various corporations in the PRC with
businesses involving e-commerce, software development, coal and energy
development and solar power. Mr. Wang was an independent non-executive
director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Interactive
Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments Limited) (stock code:
08081), the shares of which are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to
13 August 2018. From January 2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice
president of a subsidiary of Power Financial Group Limited (formerly known as
Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited) (stock code: 00397), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From May 2014 to June
2016, Mr. Wang also worked as the deputy general manager of China Demeter
Financial Investments Limited (formerly known as China Demeter Investments
Limited) (stock code: 08120), the shares of which are listed on GEM, and
participated in seeking potential investment opportunities in different projects.
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Biographical Details of Directors 552 F& FE (continued )

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain, aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in August 2017. Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science
degree (with honours) in Architecture and a Diploma in Architecture from
the Polytechnic of North London, the United Kingdom in 1979 and 1983
respectively. He had held a corporate membership of the Royal Institute
of British Architects, United Kingdom from 1985 to 2014, and had been a
registered member of the Architects Registration Board of the United Kingdom
from 1984 to 2014, a member of the Royal Architectural Institute of Canada
from 1994 to 2014 and a graduate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Architects from 1980 to 2014. Mr. Chan has over 18 years of experience in the
architecture sector and had worked as an architect, senior architect or project
manager in various architecture firms in London, the United Kingdom, Canada
and Hong Kong from 1983 to 1999. Mr. Chan had also been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company from April 2010 to June 2013.

Mr. Li Long, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in September 2017. Mr. Li has over 28 years of experience in the
trading industry. Mr. Li has held managerial positions in various sizeable
corporations in the PRC from 1985 to 2013 and was mainly been responsible

for business development, marketing and financial management.

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2017. Mr. Choy obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Wales, Newport in
2004 and a Master of Business Law degree from the Monash University in
2007. Mr. Choy was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln
University in 2019. Mr. Choy is a fellow member of each of the Institute of
Financial Accountants, the Institute of Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Institute of Compliance Officers. Mr. Choy has
extensive experience in the securities industry and has worked as a responsible
officer and representative in various securities companies in Hong Kong. He
is currently the vice chairman and a responsible officer of National Resources
Securities Limited for Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO
and also the permanent honorable president and the vice chairman of the
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited. Mr. Choy is currently an independent
non-executive director of Luye Pharma Group Limited (stock code: 2186),
Sparkle Roll Group Limited (stock code: 0970) and Zhaojin Mining Industry
Company Limited (stock code: 1818), all being limited companies listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Chengdu PUTIAN Telecommunications Cable Company Limited
(stock code: 1202), a limited company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2006 to January 2018. He was
also an independent non-executive director of Orient Securities International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8001), a limited company whose shares are listed
on GEM, from March 2010 to May 2016.
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Directors’ Report EEE RS

The Board is pleased to present this directors’ report (“Directors’ Report”)
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020. All cross-references mentioned in this Directors’
Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. The Group
also conducts securities related business which includes proprietary investments
in listed securities. The Group has ceased to carry on the Securities Brokerage
Business since mid-August 2019.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements from pages 88 to 163 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the shareholders and
investors of the Company to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company. As set out in the dividend policy, the payment and the amount
of any dividend depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to
the Group's financial performance and liquidity position, the general economic
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Group.
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Directors’ Report 8B 2R E

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020, an analysis of the Group's performance using financial key performance
indicators, and an indication of likely future developments of the Group's
business is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from page 5 to page 17 of this annual report. Description of matters
that are material for appreciation of the state of the Group's affairs can be
found throughout this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group's businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group’s internal processes, including
but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud, which may
bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business operations and
reputation. Failures of information technology systems will result in interruption
of the loan and securities related business operation of the Group and
potential leakage of confidential information. Operational risks may also result
from emergencies and unexpected events such as natural hazards. In view of
such risks, relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted and
are in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is in compliance
with the relevant requirements of laws and regulations, such as the MLO and
the SFO. Internal reporting procedures have been established and when any
suspected case of employee misconduct and/or fraud arises, any staff can
report directly to the management. The staff handbook has also stipulated that
employee misconduct and fraud are prohibited. The Group places considerable
value on data security and data privacy. The computer systems are secured
with access controls, while maintenance and update are conducted regularly by
the information technology services providers. Anti-virus softwares have been
installed for all computers in the office of the Company.
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Directors’ Report B &R (continued i)
Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group’s normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the fluctuation
of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of the Group.
Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in
maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The above
financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue generated as well
as impairment loss on loans receivables. Further discussion about the financial
risks is set out in section (B) of note 30 to the consolidated financial statements
from page 88 to page 163 of this annual report. For credit risk in respect of the
loan portfolio, the Group has developed and adopted a set of loan approval
procedures and credit policy. The Group strives to maintain sufficient cash and
adequate funding available from its shareholders and committed line(s) of
funding from financial institution(s) and other entities. To ensure the Group
maintains sufficient capital and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements,
the cash flows projection of the Group is reviewed on a regular basis.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange rates, equity
prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may generally affect
market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in particular the
customers of personal loans, corporate loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group's revenue. The Group will from time to
time fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures, in

particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations.
Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence and/or the imposition of penalties
on the Group resulting from the offence. The compliance committee of the
Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict compliance of
the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group.
The Company has also adopted a compliance manual which governs the
Company’s compliance matters in relation to the MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing
Rules as well as other relevant regulations. More information about the
compliance committee of the Company is set out in the paragraph headed
"Compliance Committee” in the CG Report from page 31 to page 33 of this
annual report.
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Directors’ Report 8B 2R E

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal

|u

Control” in the CG Report from page 34 to page 37 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the community
and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the environment caused
by the operation of its business and enhancing its influence among different
stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an environmental-friendly business
mechanism across its operation.

The Group treasures natural resources and encourages efficient use of
electricity, water and papers. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines
are provided to employees to facilitate the creation of a green workplace.
Employees are encouraged to use both sides of papers, recycled papers, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing mode when printing documents. Also,
the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 760 kg of used
papers were recycled during the year under review. The Group also initiates to
reduce waste on festive occasions. For instance, it provided “Green Christmas
Tips” to staff for reducing packaging waste resulting from Christmas presents.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and performance are set
out in the section headed “Environmental Aspects” in the environmental, social
and governance report (“ESG Report”) from pages 62 to 70 of this annual

report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. In light of this, the Group upholds high
corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice
complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its money lending
business and securities related business in Hong Kong which mainly include the
GEM Listing Rules, the MLO as well as the SFO.

(continued 18)
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Directors’ Report EBZ I continued &)

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and money
lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as money
lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest rates
and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money lender
in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the MLO. The
Group's money lending business is subject to licensing requirements. The
money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court and is renewable
annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions. Any non-compliance
with the MLO and/or the licensing conditions may result in revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence, imposition of fines and hindrance
for future renewal of the money lenders licence, which may have an adverse
impact on the Group’s money lending business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there
has been no material breach or non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations which have a material impact on the business and operations of
the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance
of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and maintains open communication with them,
which contributes to a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the sub-section headed “Employment and Labour Practices”
under the section headed “Social Aspects” in the ESG Report from page 70 to
80 of this annual report.

customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as key
to good relationship with customers and are reviewed from time to time with
the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and enhance their
satisfaction with the products and services of the Group. The Group also strives
to ensure that honest and comprehensive information about its products is
provided to customers so that they can make appropriate informed decision. In
addition, as a large amount of personal and confidential information is handled
and processed by staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of
customers’ personal data privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in
place.
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During the year under review, the Group’s major customers came from the
money lending business. With a diversified customer base, the Group did not
rely on any of its major customers. During the year under review, the revenue
generated from the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for less than 20% of the revenue generated from the money lending business
of the Group. The five largest customers were related to the Group’s money
lending business and comprised four individuals and one corporation, all of
which were third parties independent with the Company and its connected
persons. All of the five largest customers had outstanding loan balances with
the Group as at 31 December 2020.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers ranged from 1 year to 3 years, which was negotiated on an
arm’s length basis with reference to the commercial practice and the Group's
credit policy. The management of the Company will closely monitor the loan
portfolio, in particular the loans to major customers, periodically and will
continue to adopt risk control and management strategies while broadening

the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates
nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the five largest customers of the Group during the year under review.

Further details about the Group's policies and relationship with its customers
and “Data

Privacy” under the sub-section headed “Operating Practices” in the ESG Report

are set out in the paragraphs headed “Products and Services”

from page 76 to 77 of this annual report.

Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office based,
it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in general.
The Group's suppliers are mainly those who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning service companies, office
consumables suppliers and so on. The Group therefore considers that the risk
arising from cooperation with suppliers is minimal, and is unlikely that the
relationships with these suppliers will bring significant impact on the business
operation of the Group as it is comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers
in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether the
potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of sustainable
development will be considered. During the year under review, the Group has
worked closely with its suppliers and maintained good relationship with them.

(continued 18)

REBEFE AEENTIEXFREREEK A
ﬁ%m%%?%%'K%lIﬁW%EHEE%
FP-REOEFE AEBEAATFPHABERAG /R
AEEHBREXBMSRATMTR20% - Z A
REPEASBENMEEBER AR ER A
TR —HEEEK ERBINARRNKERHE
ATHE=FT R-_T_TF+_A=+—HB
BOAREPBRAKEABEREENEREH -

REBFE BRTFTXEEFMNEREEHN T —
FEZF N2E[EBRARTIEENEERE
BAFHEEEF - AQNAEEEBTHENER
BEREE LERETEERFPHNER UHER
HARBEZELRERRE RANEASTSER-

/

>

BEEMA ROBRFEANBEEETREZSTY
BAIRESIAEE AR TE%‘TTJ&$5%MJ:
MERNRRRAEERREP PR EMEE-

BRAEENBENERPBEENEZFE #
RAFRFTCETTARE HERERREAN[E
BRI SE T ERRRE] R IEREL]EE
A e

HER

RASEFRRENSREARQAE(EE L B
”‘E%i‘“%@ﬁ%/ﬁm%ﬁﬁﬂzxﬁiﬁgﬁﬁ°ZIK%I
Eﬂ?‘%fﬁixﬁ?ﬂ#fmﬁjﬂﬁ%I#ﬂ#/‘ﬁ e

BHIRTS - LLAUE R IRTE A F) - PR E R MmO E
75 o AL NEE R B Féﬁ/—\{’ﬁﬁ’ﬁFEE’Jﬂ
REM BERAREMSLRISHRAMEM
Pﬁ*ﬁﬁ(iﬁi@i\ﬂgﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬁﬁ% \%ﬁZJSEIE’JifKM

BRERNTE-

&t?l\ AEBERIURMAIERBARETK

HEENES - ERREZNEEHRHERI G ELR
SERFERREAAFAEER - REBEFE A
SEEHERAEERAARBRENBE:

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH



48

Directors’ Report EBZ I continued &)

Further details about the Group's policies and relationship with its suppliers are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Supply Chain Management” under the sub-
section headed “Operating Practices” in the ESG Report on page 75 of this
annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
year under review and the past four years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” on page 164 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, the details of which are disclosed in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 or
subsisted at the end of the year under review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the year under review, in order to raise funds for the money lending
business of the Group, First Credit Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, issued a one-year bond in the principal amount of HK$10 million at
an interest rate of 8% per annum on 6 November 2020. The bond will be due
one year from the issue date and is secured by loans receivables of the Group
in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$32 million.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

issued any shares or debentures during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment during
the year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year under review
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 91 of
this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company for the year under review
are set out in section (B) of note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to equity holders comprised the contributed surplus which amounted to
approximately HK$213.46 million.

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations and sponsorships amounting to approximately HK$398,000 (2019:
approximately HK$570,000).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year under review were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim (Chairman) — deceased on 9 March 2020
Ms. Xie Si

Mr. Wong Kai Lun

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

Ms. Ho Yuen May May — appointed on 7 October 2020

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

Mr. Chan Tung Tak Alain
Mr. Li Long

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the year under review, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong acted as the Chief Executive
Officer until his resignation on 19 March 2020. With effect from the same date,
Ms. Ho Yuen May May has been appointed as the new Chief Executive Officer.
Subsequently on 7 October 2020, Ms. Ho Yuen May May was appointed as
an executive Director. As at 31 December 2020, the Company had no senior

management other than the Directors.

Biographical information of the Directors are set out from page 39 to page 41
of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of no more than three years and each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors is appointed for a term of two
years, all being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Company’'s
remuneration policy and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management. The Company offers competitive remuneration packages
and constantly monitors the packages with reference to the Company’s
conditions and market situations. The remuneration package generally
includes fees or salary, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits and so
on. Emoluments payable to Directors are generally determined based on
the Group's operating results, individual performance and experience of
the Directors and comparable market practices. Details of the Directors’

emoluments are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Share Option Scheme was also adopted for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

S AREIRE

ot

REBEFE BCLEERETRER BEERR
“ECZFE=ATNABRE-AmKLLINER
EZERARAMITHAR BRAMBL LR
TECEFETALAREERNTES - RN _F
TEF+ A=+ R REFIN ARFLES
LMEERE-

EEREEHNRAFREIVAEFMNA -

BMRBMYM

ARABEHBBBIIFATESRIBEGEMLET AR
AIFES.0906BHERBIMNFERRE LR
RIFBBUIEATESTORBILAL

EENRBESN

ARZHTETCRARATLRBHZE B
THB=F MABIBIUFATETNENRR
ME 2REFFERAFMAREIERE - BER

BB -

BERNEERRBFAGLERZEEHER
RBEREELHEE CEERMERM T TER
—FERRLENRBEL-

¥ B BUR

AEBEERIFMEZE & AFEHAR RN
BREAEEEREENSREEBOFINERE-
RRARZERRANBERAETSRTERAZF
NOFWNTREBBEEEZAR-FHIE—R
BEAEHFES WIFEA RRERENEEN
EENHN-—REBRBAEELEXE EFH
ARR EREBETSEPIEE - FHREEHH
HIEHMREE M TBIRRME14 -

AEBETRNBERETS ARREBDRRET
HAKBEZEXNBERMNAERZ2EE (2
BF) AHBREGFINECHBRENEANS
AR MEE27 o



Directors’ Report ESB S (continued #)

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

With effect from 9 January 2021, Mr. Wong Kai Lun, an executive Director,
is entitled to a fixed salary of HK$50,000 per month and an additional sum
equivalent to his then current monthly salary (or such pro-rated sum for an
incomplete year of service) payable in December every year. Mr. Wong is also
entitled to a discretionary bonus (if any) in respect of each financial year of
a sum to be determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
his performance. Mr. Wong is also eligible to participate in the Share Option
Scheme. The remuneration package of Mr. Wong was determined by the
remuneration committee with reference to his role, qualification, level of
experience, contribution to be made by him to the Company as well as the

prevailing market conditions.

With effect from 20 January 2021, Ms. Ho Yuen May May, an executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer, is entitled to a fixed salary of
HK$55,000 per month and an additional sum equivalent to her then current
monthly salary (or such pro-rated sum for an incomplete year of service)
payable in December every year. Ms. Ho is also entitled to a discretionary
bonus (if any) in respect of each financial year of a sum to be determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to her performance. Ms. Ho is also
eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme. The remuneration package
of Ms. Ho was determined by the remuneration committee with reference to
her role, qualification, level of experience, contribution to be made by her to

the Company as well as the prevailing market conditions.

FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the five individuals with highest emoluments are

set out in section (B) of note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or had
any other conflicts of interest with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no arrangement to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries is a party, and whose objects are, or one of whose
objects is, to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate was subsisted at the end of the year under review or at any time
during the year under review.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
(including any person who at any time during the year under review was a
Director) or an entity connected with a Director had material interest (whether
directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the year under review or at
any time during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in force during the year

under review and remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position:
Name Nature of interest
=1 M

Xiao Guoliang Beneficial owner

HER BEBEAA
Ng Kam Lung Volais Beneficial owner
R HE EanEEAA

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who/which had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which was
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the GEM Listing

Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and those related
“connected transaction” or

party transactions did not constitute “continuing

connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 20 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the CG Report from page 18 to page 38 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.
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AUDITORS

With effect from 20 December 2018, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM"), which
had been the auditors of the Group since 2012, resigned as auditors of
the Company. Following the resignation of RSM, Elite Partners CPA Limited
("Elite Partners”) was appointed as the new auditors of the Group with the

recommendation of the audit committee of the Board.

During the year under review, Elite Partners was re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 by the shareholders at
the AGM held on 24 June 2020. Elite Partners will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-
appoint Elite Partners and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Wong Kai Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Guide") set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this ESG Report for the year ended 31 December 2020. This ESG
Report highlights the initiatives and efforts of the Company and the entity
which is key to the operation of the Group in terms of revenue, i.e. First Credit
Limited, in the commitment to sustainable development and corporate social
responsibility (“CSR") in the course of their principal businesses of money
lending. Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is not included in the scope of this ESG Report for the year ended
31 December 2020 due to the cessation of the Securities Brokerage Business in
August 2019.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group adopts the principle of materiality in the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") reporting by conducting stakeholder engagement
on an annual basis to understand the key ESG issues that are important to
the business of the Group. For the sake of materiality principle stated in
the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not relevant or material to the
Group are excluded from this ESG Report. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) are reported in the ESG Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Guide. The Group has complied with the
“comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide for the year ended
31 December 2020. Please refer to the section of “Stakeholder Engagement
and Materiality Assessment” for detailed information of the process adopted

for selection of material ESG factors and the stakeholder engagement.

In preparation of relevant specific KPIs, quantitative approach is adopted for
the information in the ESG Report. Sufficient description or reference to the
standards adopted have been disclosed under relevant sections of the ESG

Report.
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Where feasible, the Group makes records and estimates for quantitative
information. To ensure a comprehensive understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance, the environmental performance relative to various
quantitative KPIs with comparison to 2019 figures, are disclosed in each
corresponding section. Information on the standards, methodologies and/or

calculation references are stated wherever appropriate.

The Group uses its best endeavours to ensure consistency in the use of
methods or KPIs in achieving a meaningful comparison. There is no change to
the methods or KPIs used in this ESG Report as compared with those of the
previous year.

REPORTING BOUNDARY/SCOPE OF THE ESG REPORT

This ESG Report primarily focuses on the sustainability performance of the
Group's business activities in Hong Kong, which involve 2 offices in Central,
1 office in Sheung Wan and 1 warehouse in Kwun Tong. With the aim of
augmenting the accuracy and transparency of the disclosure in this ESG Report,
the environmental and social KPIs collected and disclosed in this ESG Report
reflect all operations in Hong Kong, unless stated otherwise.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. Information relating to the Group's corporate governance
practices has been set out in the CG Report on page 18 to page 38 of this

annual report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducts stakeholder engagement for evaluation of the materiality
and importance in ESG.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group's business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to its
business and established various channels for communication with them. The
following table provides an overview of the Group's key stakeholders and the
various platforms and methods of communication used to contact with, listen
and respond to the key stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Category
i EER

Senior management/Board of

Directors

BRERE EEg

Employees

Customers

'P

Shareholders and investors

BRERES

Professional parties

HEAL

Suppliers

TR

Expectations and Concerns

HEEREEIE

o Compliance operation

o Risk management

. Products and services quality
. amEE

o [E\ g & 12

. EmMREEE

o Health and safety

. Employee development and training
° Data privacy

o Products and service quality

° Compliance operation

. REEZS

. 1B 8 & Mg
. BRER AL
. EnkRBEE

. AREH
o Products and service quality
o Data privacy

. EmkRBEE
L BHR R

° Compliance operation
o Risk management

o Business performance
. AREH

. [\ B B B2

. RERE

° Compliance operation
° Anti-corruption

o Risk management

. AREL

. k&S

o [ f & 72

o Fair and open procurement
o NFRFERE
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Methods of Communication

BEFX

o Regular management meetings

o Board or Board committee meetings
. Financial reports

. THEEESH

. ExggEkEERRE

. ISR E

° Regular meetings and management

communication

° Job performance evaluation

. THERREREER

. TERBFE

° Service hotline

. AR 2 AR

o Annual general meeting

o Announcements and circulars
° Financial reports

° Email or mail

. BREBFERE

J NS E G

. MRS ERE

. EMA I

. Meetings

° Seminars

o Email or mail
. gE

J H R

. BRI

. Service hotline
o Email or mail
. PR 75 20 4R

. BE KM



Parang

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IRE » TE S R E B IR ES continued #)

Stakeholder Category Expectations and Concerns
HEERN HEHEREEIE
Non-governmental organizations, ° Community service
media and communities
FEBURN A& - i RtlE . 1 AR5
Government and regulatory ° Compliance operation
authorities ° Risk management
° Payment of tax
° Anti-corruption
o AML
BURT I BB e o BREE
o [\ Bz & I
o BT
o k&5

. TERE

The Group has always been committed to maintain a strong relationship
with its stakeholders, working towards the goal of sustainable development.
Stakeholder engagement is a key part of management’s strategy to manage
and report on issues that are most relevant to the stakeholders and the
Group's business.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

1. Identification: 14 highly relevant topics have been identified by
referencing the Group’s business development strategies and industrial
practices.

2. Assessment: A materiality survey was developed and distributed to

stakeholders including employees, customers, suppliers and shareholders
to rate the potential material topics.

3. Review: Results of the materiality survey were analysed and presented as
a materiality matrix. Stakeholders’ concerns were reviewed and discussed
by the management, and the identified material topics are disclosed in
this ESG Report.

Methods of Communication

BEAX

° ESG reports

o Community investment projects
. BE HEREAMRES

. HRKEIERER

o Rules and guidelines published by
regulatory authorities, including the
Stock Exchange and the SFC

° Reports of suspicious activities to
Joint Financial Intelligence Unit (if
applicable)

. B BESSHERBRGYN
58 K45 5l
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The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS' ASSESSMENT AND DECISIONS

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

High &

THRAENHERE

HEHE

ME:

2020 Materiality Matrix
—ERCTEERMEE

Anti-corruption
=
Data Privacy

Employmér{%%pgonumtles ‘ Products and
- | Val Services Quality
Caring Workplace “‘ ./ ERREHTR
FMBEM TS ||
Supply Chain Management | Safe and Healthy
HEEEE \ /7| Working Environment
\ ‘ / RZRRENHTHERR
F‘rofesslonal Devek)pment ]
L]
Waste Management
Community MER
Investment [~ U f R
HERE se o esources
Emission Con1r0|

ﬁtﬁﬁl%‘*%‘

® | Ciimate Change Mitigation
\ and Adaptation
RERERRIZR(

E\% continued #&)

NTERESAEEEERE HER

Corporate
Governance
RER

Low f&

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

S RARN AR ENERMKF

BRI

High &

The Board
g

Oversee the relevant ESG-related issues
EERE g REAMEEEE

Define and review the ESG management approach and strategy of the Group

AERBAAREERIRR - LG REAEEF KR
* Review and discuss on the effectiveness of ESG mechanism
WA ATRERIE g REAEHIE A B
e Prioritise the ESG-related issues
IR - G RERERSEETERYT
e Approve/amend ESG-related policies
U MERTIRSE - 1L 8 REAMERIECR
Review ESG-related goals and targets
BAIRE g RERBHEEEREZ

Compliance Committee
of the Board
EEREREER

Review and discuss on the effectiveness and compliance of ESG-related policies

and measures with applicable laws and regulations
REI I A B ER AR TR
BRENR

Report findings and make recommendations to the Board

MERSERER IR

& R ERBARRRIEEHERIER

ESG Workforce
1“1,% e
RERTFERK

Introduce, facilitate and monitor implementation of ESG-related policies
and measures

SIA - REREERE - e REARBBE LB NS

Conduct review on the ESG compliance and performance of the key
subsidiaries/ departments

WA EEHBAR,HPINERE HEREAERBRIRERE

Report findings and make recommendations to Compliance Committee

AEREBRERSRRIELER

Key Subsidiaries/
Departments

TEMBAR, A

Incorporate relevant policies and guidelines into daily business operations
HEAERRBUR kIG5 MA B BB EEEHR
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The Board has a critical role in overseeing the ESG-related issues by exercising
its risk-related oversight after taking into account the materiality of different
ESG risks. This oversight is strategic and closely aligned with the Group's
business model and operations.

For the year under review, the Board effectively oversees risks posed by ESG
issues throughout the risk evaluation, prioritization and management processes.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the ESG-related
risks that are relevant and material in achieving the Group's strategic objectives
based on the results/findings of the materiality assessment. Various measures
and policies have been established and implemented to manage and monitor
the risks related to the ESG matters. The Board oversees the implementation
of the ESG measures and monitors the ESG-related issues through the risk
management system during the annual review.

An ESG workforce was established to introduce and facilitate implementation
of ESG-related policies and measures. It ensures that employees are well-
informed of any introductions of or amendments to the ESG-related policies
and measures. It also takes the major role of monitoring the ESG performance
and ensuring the effective implementation of the ESG-related policies and

measures.

Annual review is conducted regarding the ESG commitment and performance
of the Group based on the relevant external and internal information
gathered. Based on the findings in its annual review, the ESG workforce
makes recommendations and suggestions to the compliance committee of
the Board, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim to
enhance ESG mechanism and policies of the Group.

5\% (continued #&)
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. The
Group is committed to minimising air pollutant and greenhouse gas ("GHG")
emission as it knows that problems of global warming should never be
overlooked. The Group therefore implements various measures on emission
reduction. Reminder emails are issued to employees regularly to encourage
the use of emails for communication and circulation of documents where
practicable so as to promote paperless culture in a digitalized community.
The Group also encourages the use of video or telephone conference so as to
reduce the need for business trips of the staff. The Group encourages its staff
to take public transport and requires employees to turn off the office electronic
appliances that are not in use before they get off from work.

For calculating GHG emissions, SME Carbon Audit Toolkit (“Toolkit”) invented
by the University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong is used
by the Group. Considering the scale of the Group’s business, the emission
factors of the Toolkit are considered suitable and are adopted in calculating
the GHG emissions of the Group that are disclosed in this ESG Report. Even
though the Toolkit was established in 2011, the Group considers that the
potential inaccuracies due to time factor will cause only minor influence on the
results. Apart from the Toolkit, other external resources obtained from relevant
institutions such as China Light and Power Company Limited (“CLP") and
Hong Kong Electric Company Limited (“HK Electric”) and those extracted from
the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report 2015 (AR5) are also adopted in calculating
the GHG emissions of the Group. Considering the business nature of the
Group, GHG emissions stated in this ESG Report in relation to the respective
consumption by the key subsidiaries and offices are calculated in the unit of
kilogram of carbon dioxide in equivalent (“kg CO, eq-"), or in kilogram (“kg"”).

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020
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For the year under review, the Group's principal business was money lending.
In other words, the main operation of the Group is office-based and hence it
generally does not lead to significant direct emission of air pollutant and GHG.
The only cause of direct emissions in the Group's operation was from the use
of vehicles which run on petrol. The volume of direct emission of air pollutant
by types caused by the Group's use of vehicles during the year under review,
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December 2019,

are as follows:

REBEFE AEEXTEEXBRRE-BRE2 K
KETERRAZTEE A —REFTESFHAK
ETRAAVMERERBEERNEN -AEEZE
BREPERERAE —FOREEME (ERA
) °$%1§Fﬁﬁ$%@%ﬁ¢ﬁ?ﬁm§$ﬁﬁ
BEOMERSAMEERNNE BERAE
—hi-i—_ﬂ:-i——EIJJ:iEE’\Jttﬁ%‘(%ﬁuT-

Nitrogen oxides (“NO") AL ([NOL])
Sulphur oxides (“SOx") ek (1so.l) 2
Particulate matter (“PM") R ([PM )

2.19 4.40 50.23%
0.07 0.08 12.50%
0.16 0.32 50.00%

Note 1: The emission factors of NO,, SOx and PM by vehicles extracted from Appendix
2 to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs are 0.0747 gram/kilometer,
0.0147 gram/litre and 0.0055 gram/kilometer respectively.

Note 2: The figure for the year 2019 has been restated as the calculation methodology
has been adjusted to align with the calculation method provided in “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.

Ml : BEBESHRERIEZERESIME_RHiE
NO,  SORPME RSB HNEH SR ATARE
0.0747% &2 7+0.01475% & B A B0.00555% °

M2 ARCHFAEDZETARUNEBTERSR
BEHMARAREMN [MARURE HER
ERME-ME - REBREDIERERE
Sl MR- NENBEEEBIE-

F-ERAEAESEARQF —ZT_FFEFH
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Apart from direct emissions, the Group’s operation also leads to energy indirect
emissions of GHG caused by the use of electricity, for example in lighting
and air-conditioning system, and other indirect emissions of GHG caused by
waste disposal, water consumption and public transportation of staff. The
volume and intensity of emissions of GHG generated by the Group during the
year under review, together with the comparative figures for the year ended

31 December 2019, are as follows:

E\% (continued &)

BREESERIN AEEEETRAEEMmEAEE
REZFHRERE PIMBELRZRARGHTH
BE ULAENEE BKREIZRMELD
HiMEFREERE - AEERDBEFERNE
ENRERBHNEREEERBE T —NF
TZA=ZT-BLFENEEBEFHT:

GHG Emission (Note 1) Intensity (Note 1)
(kg CO; eq-) (kg CO; eq-/sq. feet)
RERBHEN (Ha1) (AF-ELHKER) FE (M) (AF-EItHEE EH5R)
Note 2020 2019 2020 2019
i3 —B°%% —Z-nF —¥C%x -nE
Scope 1 - Direct HE1 -EEHER
Emissions 2 13,015 13,198 1.12 1.81
Scope 2 - Energy §E2 - aeRR
Indirect Emissions: 2,3 28,857 37,685 2.18 422
Scope 3 - Other i3 - bR
Indirect Emissions: 4
Non-hazardous BEEZENRE
Waste Disposal 5 24,075 2,070 2.07 0.28
Water Consumption /K& 6  N/ARER N/AT i A N/ATER NATER
Public Transportation & T £
of Staff 1,211 25,286 1,774 3,844 0.10 2.17 0.24 0.52
Total @it 2 67,158 54,727 5.47 6.55
Note 1: GHG includes carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous oxide etc. For easy Mzl : BERESE_QLtH Frk—aLt-_a%-
understanding, the amount of GHG emissions stated in this table is calculated RERER ARABBEREHNEUCESE
in the unit of kg CO, eq- produced. The global warming potential values for AT ZEmEEABMETHE - RREEEL
methane and nitrous oxide are 28 and 265 respectively. Given that the principal DRANPIRERE NED R H28K265 < HN A
business of the Group is office-based, the unit of square feet (“sq.ft.”) is used as SENETEEBERBATEIT WELAKRTUFE
a factor in calculating the intensity of direct emissions, energy indirect emissions FROFFR]) BEEEEEHR - 2RMA
and other indirect emissions in this table. The total area of operating premises of EHRLEMEERRNEE - AEEHES
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 was amended from 7,331 sq.ft. —AWF+ A=+ BLFELEENER
to 7,305 sq.ft. to rectify a mis-calculation. For the year ended 31 December FEH7,331FEFRIEEE7I05FHFR UAEHRE
2020, due to the addition of new office, the total area of the operating premises EITEE-BE-_T-_TF+-_A=+—HBLF
of the Group has increased to 11,613 sq.ft. E-ARENFHAZ AEELEMENLER
BOHE1,613F TR
Note 2: The intensities of the direct emissions, energy indirect emissions, and total GHG {72 : EEEAESZ;.; —NE+TZA=Z+—HLEFEXR

emissions for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been restated due to the
amendment in the total area of operating premises of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019 as disclosed above.
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Note 3: Energy indirect emissions by the Group are mainly from electricity consumption.
The latest emission factor of CLP was extracted from the CLP sustainable report
of 2019, and the latest emission factor of HK Electric was extracted from the
carbon calculator of HK Electric in calculating the data of 2020. The emission
factors are 0.50 kg CO, per unit for the electricity supplied by CLP and 0.81 kg
CO; per unit for electricity supplied by HK Electric. The total area of operating
premises of the Group for the purpose of calculating the intensity of the energy
indirect emissions by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2020 were 8,924 sqg. ft. and 13,232 sqg. ft. respectively as the
Group's warehouse with an area of 1,619 sq. ft. was also taken into account.

Note 4: The Toolkit is used to calculate the data of other indirect emissions of GHG by
the Group.

Note 5: Non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group mainly comprises general office
waste and waste generated from the renovation of certain operating branches.
Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste disposal is
estimated figures. The data of 2019 and 2020 is estimated by taking a daily
average volume of non-hazardous waste disposal as a sample. The construction
and hazardous waste generated during the renovation of operating branches of
the Group was borne by the construction company and therefore the data of the
corresponding emissions is not included in other indirect emissions of GHG of the
Group.

Note 6: Since the Group operates in leased office premises, the data of its water
consumption is not available to the Group.

The direct emissions of the Group has slightly decreased by approximately
1.39% during the year under review as compared with last year as a result
of a decrease in the use of vehicles in the year under review. The amount
of petrol used for the Group's vehicles decreased by approximately 12.50%
from approximately 5,592 litres for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 4,893 litres for the year ended 31 December 2020. In the future,
the Company will continue to encourage employees to take public transport in
substitution for the use of private vehicles so as to further reduce the emission
of air pollutant and GHG.

The total indirect emissions of GHG resulting from energy consumption
decreased by approximately 23.43% from approximately 37,685 kg CO, eg-
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 28,857 kg CO, eg- for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in indirect emission of GHG
resulting from energy consumption is mainly attributable to the close down of
certain operating branches of First Credit Limited.

The total other indirect emissions of GHG resulting from non-hazardous waste
disposal, water consumption and public transportation of the staff increased
from approximately 3,844 kg CO, eq- for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 25,286 kg CO, eg- for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase in other indirect emissions of GHG for the year under review is mainly
attributable to the renovation and relocation of certain operating branches of
the Group that resulted in the increase in non-hazardous waste disposed.

HEE3 : AEENEREEFREERERE -NFEZ
T_TFHER PENSTEREEBEEEP
BT -NFARFEERBES MEBSEENK
MR RSB EEEENRER-FE
HENEREB BT EMN0S0RT Z A Lk M
BREREENHNEHEATEMNIIRTZ
Stk -AEEBRARNTERE-_Z—ILF+=A
=+ BERZZT=TF+-A=T—HLEFE
BEREE R E NS EMELEED R /8,924
FHRKI13,232 FAR - WIEARKEB R EH
EE1,619FFRIFERER -
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During the year under review, the intensity of GHG emissions has reduced
by approximately 16.49% as compared to the corresponding period in 2019.
Moving forward, we aim to maintain or reduce the intensity of GHG emissions
and achieve our emissions target by introducing a series of initiatives focusing
on reducing emissions from vehicles and energy consumption. These emission
reduction measures are as follows:

o encourage employees to turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in
use;
o remind employees to plan routes ahead of time to reduce route

repetition and optimize fuel consumption;

o arrange regular maintenance service to the vehicles to ensure optimal
engine performance and fuel use; and

o actively adopt energy conservation measures which are described in the

section headed "“Use of Resources” below.

WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, no hazardous waste as
defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary Movements
of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal, 1989" was produced during the
year under review. Meanwhile, the Group strives to promote recycling habits
among the employees. In February 2020, the Group organised a red packets
recycling event to encourage employees to recycle unused red packets after
the Lunar New Year festival. Staff members are also encouraged to re-use
office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes. The Group
implements policies to enhance employees’ awareness of waste separation and
recycling. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the weight of used paper
collected for recycling is 764 kg, implying a contribution of 3,667 kg CO, eq-
GHG reductions.

The estimated amount of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
increased from approximately 1,380 kg for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately 16,050 kg for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The intensity of non-hazardous waste generated by the Group increased
from approximately 0.19 kg/sq. ft. for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately 1.21 kg/sq. ft. for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase in non-hazardous waste generated by the Group for the year under
review is due to the relocation and renovation of certain operating branches of
the Group.
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In the future, the Group will continue its efforts to handle non-hazardous
waste with the aim of maintaining or reducing the total generation of such
waste. Actions to reduce wastes are as follows:

o encourage the use of electronic scanning or electronic fax to reduce
photocopying; and

o introduce collection and recycling of e-waste such as old computers or
other office equipment.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the Motor Vehicle
Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance (Chapter 611 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
other relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group relating to air pollutant and GHG emissions, discharges into water and
land, or generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature, and it encourages
efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption. The Group pledged to
“Earth Hour”

28 March 2020. Employees are encouraged to turn off lights and electronic

support by turning off all non-essential lights for one hour on
appliances that are not in use after business hours. Reminder tags are placed
in the office to remind employees to adjust thermostats at a reasonable
room temperature. Office consumables such as light bulbs and stationery are
replaced or purchased only when necessary in order to avoid wastage.

The Group's business is office-based, and it merely involves regular daily water
consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water that is fit for
the purpose of the Group's operation as the water supply is managed by the
building management office. Employees are reminded to turn off the water
faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of water conservation are placed
at a conspicuous position near the sinks to remind employees to save water.
Besides, in order to promote the habit of conservation of natural resources,
reminder tags are placed in the office’s washrooms to encourage the staff to
conserve toilet paper and tissues. As the saying goes, “many a little makes a

mickle”, all these habits can bring significant impacts to our environment.
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As the Group is not engaged in the manufacturing business, its operation does HRAEBIET TR EAEER MHELELNH KL
not involve the use of packaging materials and labelling. BEMBRIZENGRA-

The volume and the intensity of energy and water consumption by the Group A&EBEREEFERNNREREKRKENZRE &
during the year under review, together with the comparative figures for the BEHZEZZT—HAF+-_A=Z+—BIEFENLE
year ended 31 December 2019 are as follows. Given that the principal business SIF T ERAEBN T EEBEER AT H#T
of the Group is office-based, sq. ft. is used as the unit in calculating the B FHRWABIEFERERKEZEHENL
intensity of electricity and water consumption:

2020
—B°%E
Unit  Unit/sq. feet
SEAHR
H RE
Direct energy — Petrol BEER-H
(kilowatt-hour ("kWh") ("000F EL/)N
in ‘000s) (TTEREF])) 1 47,420 4.08 54,197 7.42
Indirect energy — Electricity MZeER-E N
(kWh in "000s) ("000F FLB) 35,689 2.70 2 47,103 5.28
Water Consumption FEK 3 N/A FiE N/A 7~
Total: FEE 83,109 6.78 101,300 12.70

Note 1 The relevant conversion factors are referenced from the International Energy  MizE1 HMAEEBRXHEHSEBDEERE SE-
Agency.

Note 2: The intensity of indirect energy consumption of the Group for the year ended  Fffsf2 : AR AEEAEFERE_ZE—hhEFE+_A=+—

31 December 2019 has been restated as the total area of operating premises of Bil-FERZEEREREER  BEMNEEE19

the Group for the purpose of calculating such intensity should be 8,924 sq. ft. ERHRIMETAGEEELEBA  WEEWE

as the Group's warehouse with an area of 1,619 sq. ft. should also be taken into REIERE 28,924 AR Fit  EHAKEEBZE

account. —E-NFT A=+ -BLEFENBELER
EREREETBE:.

Note 3: Since the Group operates in leased office premises, the data of its water  Fffs3: BRAEBEEEENRAZTALL A EEE
consumption is not available to the Group. EREBMERKERE -

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020
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In the following year, the Group is committed to initiating further measures
addressing energy consumption, with the aim to maintain or reduce the
intensity of energy consumption. The respective measures are as follows:

o replace broken electronic devices and electric appliances with more

energy-efficient models;

o regularly clean lamps or light bulbs to ensure luminous efficiency and
effective illumination;

o keep doors, windows, and entrances closed to prevent loss of air
conditioning in the office; and

o assure the cooling effect of air conditioning equipment by proper
maintenance.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Being a financial institution, most business operations of the Group involve
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment and
natural resources resulting from the Group's operation except from the printing
of loan documents and internal documents that can result in the consumption
of a large amount of printing papers. The Group therefore emphasises on
minimising the use of paper, such as promoting the use of double-sided
printing and recycling non-confidential used paper. Reminder tags are placed
to encourage employees to use double-sided printing function, recycled paper,
or choose “2 pages per sheet” printing function. To enhance environmental
awareness of the staff not just within the office, but also in everyday life, the
Group also provides some environmental-friendly tips to employees such as
“Green Christmas Tips” for reducing the waste of packaging materials and
food resulting from Christmas presents and meals. The Group also organised
"Green Gift Exchange” during Christmas to encourage the recycling of unused

materials.

The head office and the principal place of business of the Group was relocated
to new office premises in October 2020. All construction wastes generated
from the relocation were handled and disposed of in accordance with the
Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the relevant regulations. The electronic wastes such as old computers and
computer monitors were recycled, and environmental-friendly materials were
used in the course of relocation, so as to minimise the impact of such waste

on the environment.

Owing to the office-based business nature of the Group, the Group is
not aware of any business activities which had significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Climate Change

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, there are no significant
climate-related issues which have impacted or which may impact the Group. In
view of the possible natural disasters or adverse weathers which might affect
the Group’s operation, a business contingency plan is in place to define the
recovery process for restoring the critical business functions of the Group and
minimising the loss of revenue, customers or data. The staff handbook of the
Group also stipulates the work arrangements for office in the event of typhoon
or rainstorms.

The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on its GHG emission,
the use of resources, including electricity consumption, and discharges of non-
hazardous solid waste to quantify the Group’s achievements in terms of its
measures on emission and waste reduction and initiatives on efficient use of
resources. Due to the energy conservation measures adopted by the Group
and the close down of certain operating branches of First Credit Limited,
the Group recorded a decrease in the consumption of electricity and the
volume of indirect emissions during the year under review. The management
considers that the overall results of the environmental protection measures
are satisfactory, and the Group will continue to make contributions to
environmental protection.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. A caring
workplace helps enhance employees’ sense of belonging. Comprehensive
guidelines and procedures regarding human resources, including but not
limited to recruitment, working hours, rest periods as well as compensation
are established. Guidelines on recruitment, promotion and staff appraisals are
set forth in the Recruitment Policy. Employees who commit misconducts or
violate company rules may be dismissed according to the Group’s Dismissal
Policy. To encourage retention and foster a sense of belonging, a Remuneration
Policy and Structure is formulated to govern the remuneration package of all
management and staff of the Group. In addition to maternity leave, paternity
leave and condolence leave, employees are entitled to birthday leave which
shows the Group's emphasis on its relationships with employees. Other benefits
and welfare are documented in the Group's Staff Handbook. To promote a
breastfeeding-friendly work environment, the Group has also joined the “Say
Yes to Breastfeeding” campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with
the Food and Health Bureau of the Department of Health.

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, some staff events of the Group were
suspended or cancelled during the year under review given the need to reduce
physical interaction for the sake of health consideration for the employees of
the Group. The Group will continue its effort to promote a caring working
environment to its employees in the future.
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During the year under review, the Group had a total of 31 employees and the
turnover rate was 46%. The following charts demonstrate the distribution
of employees and turnover by gender, age group, employment type and

geographical region.

Employee Diversity by Gender
BUBIE D WEEZ TLER

39%

61%

B Male ™ Female
St ey

Employee Diversity by Employment Type
RERELISHNESSZ TLER
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Employee Diversity by Age Group
RERESDNEES TILER

10%

32%

58%
B Under30yearsold B 30-50 years old Over 50 years old
30BRA T 30-505% 50RMA £

Employee Diversity by Geographical Region
riBRESNEEZ TIER

o™

100% 90%
M Full Time M Hong Kong B Qutside Hong Kong
20 BB BN
2020
k- Jami <3 3
Turnover Rate
MRE
(%)
By Gender RIERIEl 5
Male S 30
Female ZM 16
By Age Group REH AR
Under 30 years old 305 AT 5.4
30-50 years old 30-505% 35
Over 50 years old 505% A k£ 5.4
By Geographical Region Feih = & 53
Hong Kong BB 46
Outside Hong Kong FE AN 0
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During 2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
employment-related laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Group.

Safe and Healthy Working Environment

The Group strives to create a safe working environment as recommended
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong. For instance,
computer workstations for employees are designed in a way that will help
alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort resulting from
inappropriate postures. Reading materials in relation to occupational safety
and health are circulated to all employees to ensure they are equipped with
updated knowledge in this regard. The Group is committed to creating a
working environment free of discrimination and harassment, which can reduce
employees’ work stress. Discrimination is prohibited in any circumstances.
Reporting channel is also provided for staff who feels being treated unfairly
and appropriate actions will be taken to address such issues if they arise.
Further, a business contingency plan is in place to protect the Group from
possible threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster in order to
maintain the safety of employees in such situations.

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has taken
certain actions to strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures
in its workplace so as to ensure the health of its employees. Apart from
increasing the frequency of office cleaning and sterilisation, employees are
also required to wear surgical face masks in office areas. Epidemic prevention
supplies such as thermometer and alcohol-based hand sanitisers are provided
in office, and guideline on the disposal of surgical face masks is provided to
employees to ensure face masks are properly disposed after use. The Group
has strictly followed guidelines and announcements made by the Center for
Health Protection in regards to epidemic prevention, and the Group strives to
provide a healthy and safe working environment for employees.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020
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Given the nature of the Group’s money lending and securities-related business,
there was no significant risk relating to employees’ health and safety. During
the year under review, there were neither work-related fatalities nor any lost
workdays due to work injury. The Group was also not aware of any material
non-compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other health and safety-related laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group.

Development and Training

The Group adopted a Staff Training and Development Policy with the aims to
improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high-quality
staff training forms the foundation for the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information, in particular,
in relation to the money lending industry with reference to the fast-changing
market environment, the business objectives of the Group and the relevant
requirements of the regulatory bodies. A self-development sponsorship policy
is also in place to encourage continuous learning and development of staff by
providing financial supports to nurture talents and explore various potentials of
staff.

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their duties.
Staff training is conducted every year to ensure employees are well-informed
of the policies and procedures of the Group. Besides, staff trainings in relation
to the MLO, AML, counter-terrorist financing (“CTF") and anti-corruption were
conducted during the year under review. Details regarding the staff trainings
on AML, CTF and anti-corruption are set out in the sub-paragraph headed
“Anti-corruption, AML and CTF" in the section headed “Operating Practices”
in this ESG Report.
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The following charts and table demonstrate the breakdown of employees LA TNEIXRZE RAEEFEE RZER MEEBERIE
trained and average training hours by gender and employee category during 23 H9 5 3l E 8 B 4B % 7 15 52 )1 85 &5 :

the year under review:

Employees Trained by Gender Employees Trained by Employment Category

2RI D N ZIEERER REEERESNZIREERSR
7

29%
32%
39%
68%
32%
B Male M Female MW Executive Directors & M Management © General Staff
Ellid T Senior Management BEAE —RET
HITEERSREEAR

By Gender 43R

Male B 1.67
Female it 2.00
By Employee Category RESHEMNES

Executive Directors and Senior Management BITEERaRERAER 2.1
Management BIEAB 2.71
General Staff —RBET 1.33
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Labour Standard

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters. Candidates with different
qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the labour
base. The Recruitment Policy of the Group sets out a transparent mechanism
and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to child
and forced labour prevention, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity
and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that criteria such as age, gender,
marital status, nationality, race and religious belief should not be considered
in the candidates screening process so as to ensure equal treatment to all
applicants. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the Group. To
avoid illegal employment of child and forced labour, each of the job applicants
is required to fill in an employment application form, in which personal data
necessary for ensuring that the applicant is over the statutory minimum age for
employment is collected. Personal information such as the number of identity

card is collected for the sake of identity verification.

During 2020, no complaints were received regarding child or forced labour,
unfair treatment or discrimination during the recruitment and promotion
process. The Group is also not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
child and forced labour related laws and regulations which have a significant

impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Given the business of the Group as a financial services provider, suppliers of
the Group are mainly service providers who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group such as information technology services,
property management services, advertising services, legal and consulting
services. The Group also works with suppliers that supply office consumable
products, and those that provide printing and cleaning service. During 2020,

the Group had over 40 suppliers, and all of them are from Hong Kong.

In order to build up cooperation relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines were established and adopted to outline
the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors with an
aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to safeguard
the welfare of the workers, the community and the environment. The criteria
include the application of environmental-friendly principles, protection of
workers’ human rights, safety and health by the suppliers and so on. The
Group’s employees are required to follow the guidelines when selecting

suppliers and the Group will periodically review their implementation.
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The Group also puts efforts into picking environmental-friendly products or
office consumables in its daily operations as well as office relocation and
renovation. The products selected by the Group in the renovation work in
2020 included LED fluorescent tubes, durable and washable wallpaper, carpets
and floors with a material recycling rate of 70%. These carpets and floors
bear the ECO mark certified by the Japan Environmental Association which
acknowledges the practicality of products in terms of environmental protection
and the CRI Green Label Plus certified by The Carpet and Rug Institute to
identify products with very low emission of volatile organic compounds (VOCs).

The Group evaluates and monitors the ESG risks along the supply chain in
accordance with the risk management policy of the Group. Details of the risk
management system are set out in the section headed “Risk Management

2

and Internal Control” in the CG Report of the Company set out from page 34
to 37 of the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020. During 2020, the risk of suppliers bringing significant negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group's business is negligible, and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers

regarding environmental and labour protections.

Products and Services

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products is
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group
emphasises quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of staff
are encouraged to give prompt response and provide the best assistance to

customers.

To ensure the products and services provided are in compliance with applicable
laws, regulations and relevant guidelines, proper approval procedures and
relevant risk assessment would be conducted before launching any new
products. The money laundering and terrorist financing risks of all existing
products would be reviewed regularly as an ongoing monitoring control of the
product risk.

Money lending is the principal business of the Group. Product recall and
quality assurance procedures are therefore not applicable to the Group. The
Group strives to provide quality financial services to the customers and values
customers’ needs. Customers who wish to make any inquiries, feedback,
recommendation or complaints may refer to the contact details set out in the
in this ESG Report. During
2020, the Group had not received any service-related complaints.

section headed “Dialogue and Communication”
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As a financial service provider, observation and protection of intellectual
property rights is rather immaterial to the Group’s operation. The Group
registered its trademark with The Trade Marks Registry under the Intellectual
Property Department in 2013 to enjoy exclusive right to use the trademark
during its provision of financial services to customers and in the Group's

publications and advertising materials.

During the year under review, no material breach or non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the business and operations of the
Group is found. In particular, the Group adhered to the applicable laws
MLO.

advertising, the Group complied with the latest additional licensing conditions

regulating its principal business of money lending i.e., In respect of
imposed on money lenders and was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
relating to advertising during 2020.

Due to the nature of the Group’'s business of money lending, issues relating
to health and safety of products and services provided, and compliance of
the relevant laws and regulations in those aspects are not of relevance to the
Group.

Data Privacy

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data.
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the

Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in

Laws of Hong Kong) (“PDPO") and other relevant laws and regulations.
Guidelines regarding the handling of confidential information are provided
to staff to enhance information security in business operations and across
departments. Emails are encrypted and passwords are added to attachments
when necessary in order to preserve the confidentiality of material information.
Statement for the collection of personal data is provided to customers before
the collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to oversee the Group’s compliance with the PDPO.

No issue regarding material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations mentioned above was identified or reported during the year under
review. In particular, no incidents regarding infringement of customers’ privacy
or loss of customer data were found. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with the
PDPO and other relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact

on the Group relating to privacy matters.

The customers can contact the data protection officer of the Group if they
have any complaints or concerns in relation to the Group’s compliance with
the PDPO and/or any other relevant laws and regulations relating to personal
data privacy.
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Anti-Corruption, AML and CTF

Engaging in the money lending business, the Group’s employees have to deal
with money transactions in the day-to-day business operation. Potential risks
regarding improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees
cannot be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption and fraud and
a policy and procedure regarding AML and CTF (“AML and CTF Policy”) are
formulated and stated to the staff.

The Group strives to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations
and does not tolerate any corruptions and other behaviours violating work
ethics. The Group stipulates the code of conduct in the staff handbook
and encourages the staff to report any incident of soliciting and accepting
advantages.

As part of the loan approval process, the Group will carry out appropriate
customer due diligence procedures on a risk-based approach to assess the risk
of money laundering and terrorist financing. Details of the Group's customer
due diligence measures are set out in the Company's AML and CTF Policy.
Besides, measures regarding monitoring and reporting of suspicious cases are
also implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the Group.
Any suspicious case of money laundering or terrorist financing which comes
to the staff's knowledge will be reported to the money laundering reporting
officer (“MLRO") of the Group immediately. Taking the relevant information
into account, MLRO will evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis
and will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong Kong
Government as soon as practicable if he considers it necessary. To ensure
that the existing AML and CTF systems are up-to-date, effective and able to
efficiently manage the potential money laundering and terrorist financing risks,
regular reviews will be conducted.

For the year under review, in order to fulfill the additional licensing condition
for money lenders to comply with the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders ("AML and CTF Guideline”) published by the Companies Registry, the
Company has enhanced its AML and CTF systems in accordance with the latest
AML and CTF Guideline. Staff trainings on AML and CTF were also conducted
during the year under review to update and familiarise the staff with the latest
AML and CTF measures and to provide an overview of the enhanced AML
and CTF systems of the Company. Anti-corruption trainings conducted by the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC”) were also provided
to the directors and staff of the Group for the year under review. Reading
materials in relation to business ethics and anti-corruption were circulated to
all staff, so as to enhance employees’ understanding of anti-bribery and anti-
corruption.
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Staff handbook of the Company sets out the code of conduct regarding
accepting and soliciting advantages. All members of the staff are required to
follow the code of conduct. A reporting mechanism is also established for staff
to report any non-compliance incidents in relation to bribery, corruption, fraud,
money laundering or terrorist financing.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified during the year under review. The Group did not receive any whistle-
blowing reports from its employees during the year as well. There were also
neither any confirmed incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery,
corruption, fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing against the laws
of Hong Kong nor any legal proceedings regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees during the year under review. The Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing
which have a significant impact on the Group for the year 2020.

COMMUNITY

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations should be recognised and
supported. The Group will also explore possibilities to cooperate with different
organisations that share the same values and principles with the Group. The
Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social involvement and
civic consciousness. The Group established the First Credit Volunteering Team.
Employees are also encouraged to participate in community enhancement
events such as volunteering and fundraising activities.

For the year under review, the Group mainly focused on environmental
concerns and labour needs in its community engagement. The Group
participated in “Earth Hour 2020" organized by World Wide Fund For Nature
Hong Kong to show its concerns about climate crisis and deterioration of
biodiversity, and “Say Yes to Breastfeeding Campaign 2020/2021" initiated
by the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF in collaboration with the Food and
Health Bureau of the Department of Health to show its support in promoting
breastfeeding friendly workplace. Also, the Group made donations to Feeding
Hong Kong Limited (“FHK") and First Credit Volunteering Team took part in
FHK's special festive food parcel packing sessions in August 2020.

It was the Group's plan to participate in volunteering sessions organized by
FHK in a half-yearly basis, yet, the outbreak and development of COVID-19
during the year brought difficulties in coordination since the Group adopted
shift system and flexible working hours to cope with the epidemic, while some
volunteering sessions were cancelled by FHK given the risk of crowd gathering
and the need to maintain social distance.
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AWARDS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received the award of
Caring Company (2020/21) from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
which represents a recognition of the team efforts paid by the Group on CSR.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group upholds high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure
that its business practice complies with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes and will evaluate
the need to amend its existing policies and practice from time to time. Details
of the Group's corporate governance structure and practices are set out in the
CG Report from page 18 to page 38 of the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain open communication opportunities with
various stakeholders on CSR matters from time to time. The Group values
every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders on CSR matters
in order to improve its existing CSR policies and practice. Stakeholders may
write directly to the Group’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 1/F,
O.T.B. Building, Nos.259-265 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries, feedback and
recommendation regarding CSR-related issues.
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elite
partners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) set out on pages 88 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
P ESEIE

(continued &)

BARESEE(E

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEME N EERREEIE

Impairment of loans receivables

(Refer to notes 20 and 30(B) to the consolidated financial
statements)

The measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL"”) requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models, such as
the probability of default, loss given default, expected future cash
flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of loans receivables (representing
approximately 88% of total assets) and the corresponding
uncertainty inherent in such estimation of ECL allowance, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

Our audit procedures included the assessment of the design
and operating effectiveness of controls over the origination,
segmentation, ongoing internal credit quality assessments,
recording and monitoring of loans receivables.

We also assessed the operating effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment methodology, the
governance for the ECL models, inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the ECL and the mathematical accuracy
of the ECL calculations.

For collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the validity of the
Group’s ECL models, including model input, model design and
model performance for significant portfolios.

We assessed the Group's criteria for assessing if a significant
increase in credit risk had occurred against the requirements of
HKFRS 9 and tested the staging of the Group's financial assets
against these criteria.

We challenged whether historical experience is representative of
current circumstances and the recent loss experience incurred in
the portfolios.

We assessed whether the forward-looking adjustments,
including the economic variables and assumptions used in each
of the economic scenarios and their probability weightings were
consistent with internal information and external economic
and market data with a particular focus on the impact of
COVID-19. Where changes had been made in model parameters
and assumptions, we evaluated the appropriateness of such
changes.

We also assessed and tested the sensitivity of the credit loss
provisions to changes in modelling assumptions.

For a sample of exposures that were subject to an individual
impairment assessment, we reviewed the Group's assumptions
of the expected future cashflows, including assumptions
in respect of the realisable value of collateral. In light of
COVID-19, we included borrowers which are more vulnerable to
the pandemic in our risk-based sampling approach to perform
loan review procedures.

We also evaluated the adequacy of financial statement
disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
FSEEIR

BARESEE(E)

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEME N EERREEIE
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report &1 & BIBN R (continued #)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 1T & BIEN R 25 continued #)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

23 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income S EEREMZENAR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$
B 5 & IT
Revenue Il gas 6 38,016,626 88,881,668
Other income Hag A 1,944,128 39,663
Other losses H b EsiE 9 (3,095,214) (3,949,780)
36,865,540 84,971,551
Administrative expenses TERRAX (25,429,197) (28,055,902)
Impairment loss on loans receivables, net & E Fp B & 18 %5 11 (360,193,407) (200,581,489)
Trading right written off i SHE 50 19 - (3,100,000)
Other operating expenses HMgEms (9,359,472) (10,373,177)
Loss from operations HEEE (358,116,536) (157,139,017)
Finance costs MEER 10 (273,171) (187,051)
Loss before tax R BiaIES1E 11 (358,389,707) (157,326,068)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fris®i (%) #H & 12 (9.221,821) 24,432,997

Loss and total comprehensive loss EATHBE AEILERNEBE

for the year attributable to RE2EEEEE
owners of the Company (367,611,528) (132,893,071)
HK cents HK cents
=31 gl
Loss per share BikEE

Basic HAK 16 (10.13) (3.66)
Diluted e 16 N/AFEH N/ATT 3 A
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position {2 &8 ik n +R

At 31 December 2020 R-—ZT_-_ZTE+_-_A=+—H

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$
B 5 BT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZE 17 3,183,665 484,297
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18 5,086,347 2,514,134
Loans receivables BB R 20 221,441,816 151,877,137
Deferred tax assets RERIBEE 24 26,557,406 35,812,011
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 256,269,234 190,687,579
Current assets REBEE
Loans receivables EUE X 20 225,812,161 646,178,852
Financial assets at fair value through AR FER AEE®
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (TRLAEEFTAEZE )
NemEE 21 8,018,780 10,476,000
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE iR REA
other receivables FE WK IE 4,038,539 4,022,233
Bank and cash balances RITRIR & ek 14,377,955 17,081,890
Total current assets MEVE EMTE 252,247,435 677,758,975
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A I H At FE T 5B 1,287,472 1,673,476
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 2,015,208 1,416,997
Consideration payable FERRE 1,059,958 =
Bond payable ERES 23 10,000,000 =
Current tax liabilities BEARIIE B (& 175,124 5,801,202
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 14,537,762 8,891,675
Net current assets mEBAEEE 237,709,673 668,867,300
Total assets less current liabilities BELERRDER 493,978,907 859,554,879
Non-current liabilities FERENAE
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 2,035,556 -
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEERE 2,035,556 =
NET ASSETS BAEEE 491,943,351 859,554,879

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Cconsolidated Statement of Financial Position #7258 FZHA T 3R continued )
At 31 December 2020 R-_Z-_ZTE+_-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves EXRGHEE

Share capital B A 25 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves k] 26 419,367,351 786,978,879
TOTAL EQUITY HEnE 491,943,351 859,554,879

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 163 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

FEBBEIEMIBMGFAFBHREN T - —F
“AZT=AREFSHAERRETE XA T
BEEREREE:

Wong Kai Lun
HRfE
Director

EE

Lai Szu Yu
BT
Director

EE
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity RS R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE_-F

=

Share
capital

3

&

—EEST_A=+—BIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATHE AELE

Share
premium

Bt} it 1

Capital
reserve

AFftH
HK$
BT

Contributed

surplus

YA

Retained

profits/

(accumulated
losses)
REid
(Rati8)

At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 207,920,003 992,447,950
Total comprehensive loss ~ FAZEEBHAE
for the year - - - - (132,893,071) (132,893,071)
Changes in equity FREREE
for the year - - - - (132,893,071) (132,893,071)
At 31 December 2019and RZZT—NF+=A
1 January 2020 =T-ARZZZZHF
—HA—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 75,026,932 859,554,879
Total comprehensive loss ~ FAZEEBAE
for the year - - - - (367,611,528) (367,611,528)
Changes in equity FRERZE
for the year - - - - (367,611,528) (367,611,528)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-2F+R
=1+—H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470  (292,584,596) 491,943,351

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows iz REARE R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &

ER_REF_A=+—HIEFE

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$
Bt 5 B IT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING HEEZPNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax %7 Bl 1R (358,389,707) (157,326,068)
Adjustments for: AT BB :
Depreciation of property, W BERBETE
plant and equipment 17 864,530 2,827,603
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 18 5,310,966 4,921,802
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BRERLFEEIE
plant and equipment 9 54 -
Gain on early termination of RAZLHEEBZEO KR
lease agreement 9 (11,100) -
Bank interest income RITH B U A 8 (103) (2,141)
Other interest income H At F 2 UA 8 (13) (3,818)
Dividend income % B U A 8 - (31,640)
Trading right written off WiHE S 19 - 3,100,000
Realised loss from financial assets NATFEFAERN SR
at FVTPL BENCEREBR 9 - 265,370
Fair value loss from financial assets NATFEGABRNHE
at FVTPL BENRFESBSE 9 3,106,260 3,684,410
Finance costs B 75 & A 10 273,171 187,051
Impairment loss on loans receivables ERERREER 415,252,199 201,005,155
Recoveries of loans receivables e [B] 2k 18 sk it 8 9
impaired or written off JE W B 3R (55,058,792) (423,666)
Operating profit before working EELASEHALLEHET
capital changes 11,347,465 58,204,058
Increase in loans receivables JE U B X8 0 (9,391,395) (57,121,030)
Increase in prepayments, TR FRIE ke REAM
deposits and other receivables FE W SR TR 3 0 (16,306) (700,135)
Decrease in bank balances WITHEB—(EER
— trust and segregated accounts BIRPRD - 159,149
Increase in financial assets NATFEEABRED
at FVTPL T RLE AR AN (649,040) (14,425,780)
Decrease in accounts payable JE T BR RUR = (159,149)
Decrease in accruals and other payables /&t % Ff K H ftb g 1
FIBR D (467,100) (766,130)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations “&:@FF15,/ (FrAR)E L 823,624 (14,809,017)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B EBENEH (5,593,294) (38,416)
Net cash used in operating activities KETRE AR F 5 (4,769,670) (14,847,433)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #= 517

ﬁ'_b 82 % (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 ﬁi—7:?¢+ A=+—HIFE

2019
—E-NF
Notes HK$
B 5 & IT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BETBNHEERS
ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received 2R 1T 82 8 103 2,141
Other interest received BUE AT B 8 13 3,818
Dividend received BB 8 - 31,640
Purchases of property, plant and BEMX - BREREHE
equipment 17 (3,563,952) (223,765)
Net cash used in investing activities KREETBFARE TR (3,563,836) (186,166)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REEBNESRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from consideration payable ERREMEHIE 31 1,864,683 =
Proceeds from issuance of bond BITEFSNIE 31 10,000,000 =
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERRE 31 (5,238,312) (5,053,208)
Repayment of consideration payable BEEMNRE 31 (900,000) =
Interest paid EAFE 31 (96,800) (187,051)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEERBAE(FA)
financing activities ReFE 5,629,571 (5,240,259)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH ReRBeEEYMRLFE
EQUIVALENTS (2,703,935) (20,273,858)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FVRERFLEEY
BEGINNING OF YEAR 17,081,890 37,355,748
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERRERBFEEEY B
AT END OF YEAR, represented by:
Bank and cash balances RITRBE 2 &H 14,377,955 17,081,890

E—ERAEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 78S

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_TF+_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business is 1/F,
O.T.B. Building, Nos. 259 — 265 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017,
the Securities and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange
to suspend the trading in the shares of the Company. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the trading of shares of the
Company remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS”)

(A)  AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS”) (Cont'd)

(A)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Cont'd)

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group's financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

EREEMBHREER ([F
wE

B M %

ZA) 2185

(4% )

—

A)

PO X 58 il AR B 2 B 8 B 7
EREANZIER] (&)

RAFERBEEVBRESEIHH
SERIAZETREBHBHRELE
A2 ERTHARER RN FERBESF
2R RRBR RS ARG E B
BHREAMEZIRBEYRERLE -

BB R A # AT R
AIEABMBHmELER

AEEIW TR AT IS EME M
REBB R RGBT BET B RS

amendment to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

BB BMEERFE 7R

Amendment to HKFRS 16
BEMBREERNFE1698 21ER]

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BRI REERFEIR Z2IEF]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
BAREUBREEREN  FEGER
F39% BEMBHREERETH
BEMBREENFSRERBBUE
HELERF 16T ZER]

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

EEMBMEEINFEI10R R
BB G ERIF 285 2 EF]

8

Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments

R A K MERER

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
2019 KA S REBEBES R

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BRHERSIA

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

MEEENE-F_BR

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture
BREEMABENTNEEREZHED
BEHESITE

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTAE=SRZ%E
BIGE EERIE £
1 January 2023
—ZET-=%—H—H

1 June 2020
—TZTFRNA—H

1 January 2022
—E-—%—H—H

1 January 2021

—T=—%—A—H

A date to be determined

HEIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 3 )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

i% MVJL %—: (continued #&)

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. EREBRMBHREEDN (&
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B EREER]) Z1&FT
(“HKFRS") (Cont’d) (&

(B)  NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) CRMEMARERZ ] RLE
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd) RIERMBmEER (&)
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
RUTHESZE
FA%E B9 4 B B 4 3
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
BB G ERE 1R 2185 BEIM Z%uw%b‘kihéﬂ&éf%%ﬁ% —E_=%—H—H
FoW (ZT_TF) ZHBMEET
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds 1 January 2022
before Intended Use
EB g ERIE 165 2 B8] ME - WEREE - RERRANZ —T-=F—A—H
Fri8 8
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling 1 January 2022
a Contract
SRTERIEITHRZERT BEMEEH-BITERHZEAR —E--%—A—H
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022
2018 — 2020
ERMBRELER ZEE] \‘%ﬁﬂ%#&i‘iﬁw Z-N\FEx —ZE-—_#—HA—H
R FEYGE

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

BT 2 A RRETBREN RS
EQSN EERHEAMA LM REE
AIERBUBRELENRARBRT G
BUBBRERERTE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #75 84 #53R
For the year ended 31 December 2020 EHZE_—Z :T¢+Zﬂ =+

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS”) (Cont’d)

(B)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

(@)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
concessions

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient
for lessees to elect not to assess whether a COVID-19-
related rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

- the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

- there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
in the same way as it would account for the changes
applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are
accounted for as variable lease payments. The related lease
liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on the
Group's financial position and performance as the Group
does not intend to apply the practical expedient.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 3 )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS”) (Cont'd)

(B)  NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate
to the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

- Modification of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities

A practical expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications required as a
direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and made on an economically equivalent
basis). These modifications are accounted for
by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current
HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

2.

?E MUL %—: (continued #&)

A
S oif
)‘EE

off
it S
o0 et
ZIf
N
iy |

W
ank

(B) ERMIERARERZHF] MEE
RIEEMBHREEL (&)

() BAEMBREEAFSR &
B ERIFE395 BB
BRELERNE7R  BEHH
REERNFBARRBEHE
HEERIF165E 2 ER] [F
REEWE-F R

BREYMBWMEEANFEN - FE
GETERAEIR  BEYBR
SHEBNETR BEYBHRELE
A4S R B BM B RS EAFE
1658 B R] [F REEHFE—
FE_BERIFPREREE SR
BEREHEAGENERE -BE
HHEHEEREARBERE
BB W EEBETHR T%EE_T_
BB -HEREHEEE

é‘)fﬂﬂaﬁﬁﬁz{aaﬂl’\]ﬁﬁsﬁ

T o

- ZHEE-SMAERERHAE
HEEAMNEE

SIARTTRE T ENE
TREMEBRMEE (&
ERREERERE
KEOBEERRLIBEH
BEEEEDR) ZEH
EERAEHERMNEA
FRoPmBHMBEEHAR
TEEMBREEANR
EANBR-SEREETE
$&¢°’§H‘Jfﬁ16%ﬁﬁ’]7¥<$ﬂ

BHEEME BER
xEME’\J—HﬂE*EH/f-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/Hj f% &i@ Bﬁ %E (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS”) (Cont'd)

(B)  NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (Cont'd)

- Disclosures

The amendments require disclosures in order to allow
users to understand the nature and extent of risks
arising from the interest rate benchmark reform to
which the Group is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress
in transitioning from interbank offered rates to
alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is

managing this transition.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
"GEM Listing Rules"”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

%%&ﬁ%%mmm%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FEEFEHEK

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to owners of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

(A)

ki
p
ffat
+#

RAMBHRRBEARARARAR
REMERRIES 2 B2 M B®REK -
BN G ATHRER AR ARG E
4

. BERHKESRWOED:

. H2EREHRERMARET
PO He AR R EFF B ER
ERER] K

WA EERIERE R Lt = T
EEE-EXSELRE( AEE
REFTER TR AN EAE
48 -

AN ER B Y EXAS F B R i A R 0 Bt
BARGAEAER YRKXEHEB A A

TR ERRIGEE AR - E8MmE -
FAMKBEERB AR ZKWAR
M EAREERGEGES AR
ANirgBEm kA2 HEER BES
AEBMTHEZGERENBEARZAR
M:o

BEkEGE2AKRSEEARBERA
REEAA -

MENE WERANHERRE
HBE AR RARAEENY
LR

FESERNRRHEERAE #xm-
WA - REAEEKE RARR
ZEBENHEREBNGEARKE
E IR

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH

101



102

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements x5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computers 50%
Motor vehicle 25%
Motor yacht 12.5%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(€)

LEASES
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms

and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the consolidated financial statements would
not differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 38 3R MY 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FESFHBE (&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

©)

LEASES (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life

and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT—-F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(€)

LEASES (Contd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed lease payments (including in-

substance fixed payments).

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment; and

o the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — TRADING RIGHT

Trading right with indefinite useful life that is acquired separately
is carried at cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is
reviewed annually or when there is any indication that the trading

right has suffered an impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2= MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_FTF+_A=+—HIFE

4. FEEHBR(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating

unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount
of the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

%%&ﬁ%%mmm%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expenses over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 S 84 55 3 2 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term;

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

4. FEEHBR(£E)

k>
30|

0T A (&)

H%
2

MEE

17

EHMEEZ T ERERKE

AT I Gt S A A H 1 T
RAFE

. ERMEERBMNAKBRAEHNR
EREBNEBEAANFE : R

BRBFRREFEEREENR
ERMEBAB/INEAE RAE
BASHHE

MAEEMEBMEEERUAFEA
BETE R VRERTREER
AR ARBRELFFEEE IR E
TREBEEMBREENSEIREBA
PFATERMEE A P ERNAAR
B AIAREEAT A HEEERE
2 RS2 RAREAFENE
B

ETIERT 2REERBEREE:

. BAZEZENRNEHAHE
=

. ROBERR BRAEEER
ERzE#MNEMIAEAGZ
— By BEHEEREHE
MAE 5k

. BYFEERBREREHT
BEZfT&ETH-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/H\j %% &?EBM %$ (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -ZTHF+_-_A=+—HIL&EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-

impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset and is included in the “other income” line item.

4. FEEHBR(£E)

k>
30|
j==3
H
\}

/

)
T
N

BB E

W
~
i
N

k>
30|

B AR T B A

HEBmBHER At ENEREENT
SURATHE BB HOXTER - KB
Wkﬂﬂ%ﬂé?%ﬁ@@%%gﬁ
MEFAAE - HEEREBREERE
Wﬁﬂé%%ﬂW%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ
EMNEREEMS BT —HEHL
FBMA TS £ B & B 3 8H A AN e
BB T AR - MEERES R
TANGFERARHFE EEMEET
BEEEERE RETEETHE
EEERER BRESHHABENS
WA EREERAAERAER
MR T LAHER

RNFEFAEBRZ EHEE

THERBHEK AT ERENSRE
ENAFEFABRSTE

NRAFEFABRNEREER SR
EHMRBRAFEFE TARFER
HEBEERERER RN ERERL
WadBRFE TR EREEREE
I EFMBKRBEAE Lt ATHE

A IEE A -

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH

109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(F)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss ("ECL") model on financial assets (including loans receivables,
deposits and other receivables and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect

changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the end of the reporting period. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for loans receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances
and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

groupings.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant

increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.
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7 75 3R TR MY BF (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -ZTHF+_-_A=+—HIL&EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(F)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

(@) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

(b)  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

(c) existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

(d) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

(e) an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

/H\j %% &?EBM %$ (continued &)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 S 84 55 3 2 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1)

(if)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that receivables that
meet either one of the following criteria are generally not

recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or
o information developed internally or obtained from

external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the borrower is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the borrower has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 S 84 55 3 2 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEGSHEE(£)

(Cont’d)
(F)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) F SBIE(#E)
Financial assets (Cont’d) TRMEE (&)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on loans receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes into consideration the

following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/H\j %% &?EBM %$ (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE T -ZTHF+_-_A=+—HIL&EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivables, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received. On derecognition of a financial asset
measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(F)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accruals and other payables, lease
liabilities and bond payable are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(Cont’d)

(@)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,

demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less that

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.
Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees

have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are held
in separate trustee-administered funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 S 84 55 3 2 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FEEHBR(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(H) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont'd)
(i)  Retirement benefit obligations (Cont'd)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, with the employers’
contributions subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. The Group's contributions to the scheme are
expensed as incurred and are vested in accordance with the
scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave the scheme
prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

(ily  Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit or when it recognises

any related restructuring costs.

() SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

(i) BRAKBHNEE(E)

RERBESFTE BIRERE
BXBAREERBEKAN%
EHEF EEHFRAE AR
% U A30,000 T LR o &
& A % 5t EME B RN E
ERHE YREZFIANE
&8t P 57 - fiv R B B E it
REHRGEAR L ZFE R
Y B g5k & BB K A (R R AN &=
B e A B R o

(il)  BEEBAE T

BEREMNEERARNEREERES
BE T 42 (1t 0 BB AR T A R R
Sk AEA B EAK AR (AR
BEREIER-

VAR D I B 1 2 3R

VAR 45 B30 DA B £ R ERE B 19 3R T
REDTARKREEHANATE (T
AARFETERBRENTZE)GE-
VA P #E #6530 DA RR 00 /3 EL R O 9 SRR
EHBEHEEN A FEREBEASE MG
AERABBORND NEEHRENE
BORXH LHMIEM B BB GENF
BEHRE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

)

TAXATION
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(J)  TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which

the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same

taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

(K)  REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

Iu

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “contro

underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to

the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service that
is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same. Control is transferred over time and
revenue is recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant performance

obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group's performance as the Group

performs;
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of the goods or services

7 75 3R TR MY BF (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. FEEHBR(£E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(K)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (Cont'd)

o the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Interest income from loan facilities

Interest income charged on loan facilities is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Commission income from securities brokerage services

Commission income from securities brokerage services is
recognised at a point in time on the date of transaction when the
relevant services are rendered.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present

value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

4. FEEHBR(£E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 78 3R 7R B 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZT-ZTHF+_A=+—HIL&EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., TESFHEK (£)
(Cont’d)
(L)  PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Cont’d) L BERSKAGE(E)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(M)  RELATED PARTIES (M)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(B)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(M) RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)
(B)  (Cont'd)

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A);

(vii) a person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements x5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont'd)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, that the directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4, ECL measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether
the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable

forward-looking information.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment allowance for loans receivables

The directors estimate the amount of loss allowance for ECL on loans
receivables based on the credit risk of loans receivables. The amount of
the loss allowance based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less than expected,
or being revised downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a

material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2020, impairment allowance for loans receivables
was approximately HK$519.37 million (2019: approximately HK$216.85
million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

6. REVENUE 6. W
2019
—E-NF
HK$
IT
Revenue from Contracts with Customers FHEMEREEE155REE
within the scope of HKFRS 15 ARBEESHILE
Interest income from loan facilities (note 1) ~ B @& M F 28U A
(BzE) 38,016,626 88,875,502
Commission income from securities BEELRBEHAS KA
brokerage services (note 2) (HizE2) - 6,166
38,016,626 88,881,668
Notes: B eE:
(1) Interest income on the impaired loans receivables for the year (1) BE-_T-FTFE+-_A=1+—BHILFE B
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to HK$8,196,611 (2019: Nil). BEEKREZRF E WA A8,196,61178 T
T-NFE)-
(2)  The Group ceased the Securities Brokerage Business in mid-August (2) AEERZZ-NENAFARIEEFL
2019. FRES X
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. HER
The Group has identified the following reportable segments: REBEEHR TR 2,6
Money lending = provision and arrangement of credit W& - RABRERZHEERE
financing in Hong Kong
Securities trading - provision of services in relation to BHEHE — HEBBEHFLELHRSE X
securities brokerage and proprietary E LREFTES
investments in listed securities
The Group's operating segments are strategic business units that offer AEBZEESHARBTRARS 2 K
different services. They are managed separately because each business FIGEN - BN S EBARER TR M R T
requires different technology and marketing strategies. GHEXRE WRSEE T RER
Segment profit or loss does not include the following items: DEERTBEATIES
= unallocated other income -  RoBREMEKA
= unallocated other gains and losses - RoBREMKEKREE
- unallocated corporate expenses - ROBRBERX
Segment assets/(liabilities) do not include the following items: DEEE,/ (AB)TBENTER:
= deferred tax assets/(liabilities) - EEFEEE/ (AFE)
= other unallocated assets/(liabilities) - HtERSEEE (BRE)

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 84 3% 3R 7R Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZZT-_TF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

Money

Lending

B

Securities
Trading
HEEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. 2WEHR(E)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets and FHRZESBEZ AERBRZER:
liabilities:

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_T_-FF
+=-A=+—HLFEE
Revenue Wz 38,016,626 - 38,016,626
Segment loss DELEE (359,038,919) (4,755,607) (363,794,526)
Interest revenue WA 38,016,646 16 38,016,662
Interest expenses FERX (264,173) (8,998) (273,171)
Depreciation of property, M- BB REETE
plant and equipment (854,411) (3,488) (857,899)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRBEEETE (4,092,127) (1,175,305) (5,267,432)
Income tax expense PR Tk (9,213,859) - (9,213,859)
Other material non-cash item: HthsERIFRLHER :
— Impairment loss on loans —EWEFREEE
receivables, net FEE 360,193,407 - 360,193,407
Additions to segment non-current DEIERDEERE
assets 3,563,952 - 3,563,952
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-F%
+=-A=+—H
Segment assets DEEE 463,311,004 14,960,864 478,271,868
Segment liabilities SE|E E 16,236,592 50,000 16,286,592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7S 84 38 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 7. 2WEHR(E)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, assets and FHRZETHES SEREBEZER:
liabilities: (Cont'd) (#&)

Year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue

Segment loss

Interest revenue

Interest expenses

Depreciation

Income tax credit

Other material non-cash items:
— Impairment loss on loans

receivables, net

— Trading right written off

Additions to segment non-current
assets

As at 31 December 2019

Segment assets
Segment liabilities

i

FMEFX
e
Fris Bk &
HEXRFRLER :
—EWEFRERR
FER
—MHE S
DEFERBEERE

-+ |1
momy | A
o B o

IR
oKk DRk
9

88,875,502
(114,725,922)

88,876,717
(120,223)
(5,926,542)

24,480,075

200,581,489

217,685

811,735,444
7,869,281

6,166
(11,928,185)
4,090
(66,828)
(1,760,573)

3,100,000

6,080

17,872,277
678,085

88,881,668
(126,654,107)

88,880,807
(187,051)
(7,687,115)

24,480,075

200,581,489
3,100,000

223,765

829,607,721
8,547,366

F-ERAEAESEARQF —ZT_FFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

RI PR R APl &t

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE
7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets and

liabilities:

7.

T ERE R (E

(continued #&)

)

NEHSBES BERBRZHE:

2019
—T—hfF
HK$
BT
Profit or loss E
Total loss of reportable segments AIEWDEBEE (363,794,526) (126,654,107)
Unallocated amounts: APECEEE:
Administrative and other operating expenses TEREEMELERY (5,753,143) (6,194,027)
Other income Hab g A 1,944,103 2,141
Income tax expense FrefiA X (7,962) (47,078)
Consolidated loss for the year FEHEEE (367,611,528) (132,893,071)
Assets &aE
Total assets of reportable segments AZ2|HEBEE 478,271,868 829,607,721
Unallocated amounts: RO :
Deferred tax assets RIETRIAE BE 26,557,406 35,812,011
Other receivables and other assets E b E U GRTE R H b B 3,687,395 3,026,822
Consolidated total assets HAEEERTE 508,516,669 868,446,554
Liabilities Bf&
Total liabilities of reportable segments AE2WoHEEaE 16,286,592 8,547,366
Unallocated amount: KOS
Other liabilities HihAa 286,726 344,309
Consolidated total liabilities A BEBE 16,573,318 8,891,675
All of the Group's revenue from external customers and non-current Bz T -—_TER-_T—HE+ A

assets was generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years

ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no revenue from a single

external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue

(2019: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued )

8. OTHER INCOME

Bank interest income
Other interest income
Dividend income
Sundry income
Government grants

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZF+-_F=+—HILFE

8. Hiblr A

HRIT RS WA

2,141
At I B A 3,818
R EWA 31,640
HIEIA 2,064
IR B -

39,663

9. OTHER LOSSES

Fair value loss from financial assets
at FVTPL

Realised loss from financial assets
at FVTPL

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on early termination of
lease agreement

UNAFEFABRSNEREED

9. HMEE

NV EESE

(3,684,410)
PRFEFABRSNSREEN
EERER (265,370)
HEME BERREER
R AAR \E R 165 o ) MR
(3,949,780)

F-ERAEAESEARQF —ZT_FFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & 84 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

10. B ER

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFSHAX 96,800 187,051
Interest expenses on consideration payable f&1} (& F B 5% 95,275 =
Interest expenses on bond payable EfREFFERX 81,096 =

273,171 187,051

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss before tax has been arrived after charging the

following:

11. BRBIATRES 18

EC

AEBEWRBATEERAR TIRBREM

Auditor’s remuneration ZEET & 780,000 755,000
Depreciation of property, W REREETE
plant and equipment 864,530 2,827,603
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEETNE 5,310,966 4,921,802
Legal and professional fees ERRBEXER 3,191,944 3,682,517
Impairment loss on loans receivables, net & B X5 (B &5 18 % 58 360,193,407 200,581,489
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 12. RSB (E %)

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

BIEATR A —F B FE K

Provision for the year FRBE 34,766 8,277,739
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEERE (67,550) (5,976)
(32,784) 8,271,763

Deferred tax (note 24) RAERIA (FFFE24) 9,254,605 (32,704,760)
9,221,821 (24,432,997)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

12. i< (B&E) (&)

RAEIR A S M AR S - 25 52,000,000

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Cont’d)

Under the current two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2

million of assessable profits of a corporation will be taxed at 8.25%,

and assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax
of the nominated Group company is calculated in accordance with the

two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The assessable profits of other Group

companies in Hong Kong will continue to be taxed at the tax rate of

16.5%.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense/(credit) and the

product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is

as follows:

VST EFE R FIE 2 B K B8.25% - i B i
2,000,000/ 7T FERT B FIIE 2 B X 516.5% ©
HE-_Z-ZTFR-_FT—hhF+ZA=1—
HIEFE BREEEARNESNESHRD
RRANEHMAGAE Bt AEENTE
NRIMERTR B 1216.5% M REF -

EHAX,/ (ER) BERERABERIE
ANERRE ZEHENT :

Loss before tax B 75 Bl B 18 (358,389,707) (157,326,068)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5%  ZEARK L16.5% (ZT—NF:

(2019: 16.5%) 16.5% )t EMFIB (59,134,302) (25,958,801)
Tax effect of a two-tiered profits TS B W 43 b ) R 75 = 28

tax rates regime - (165,000)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~ HEZRHRW AWK E (281,178) (353)
Tax effect of expenses that A HIRAZN R G &

are not deductible 247,281 455,488
Tax effect of temporary difference RERLREENB SR

not recognised 8,939,844 34,602
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BABTREANIEEEN

not previously recognised BigwE (125,568) =
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MAERTEBENREZE 59,643,294 1,207,043
Over-provision in prior years MAFEBEEE (67,550) (5,976)
Income tax expense/(credit) FrasiFms, (Ex) 9,221,821 (24,432,997)

E—ERAEREEFRAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & 84 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE
13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

13. EEREAMRX

Employee benefits expenses BEBMFAX
(excluding directors’ emoluments): (TEFEEEMe) -
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e feA RERL 12,686,125 13,631,107
Pension scheme contributions RSB R 779,491 969,907
13,465,616 14,601,014

(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2019: Nil).
No balance (2019: Nil) of forfeited contributions were available at
the year-end to reduce future contributions.

(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees in the Group during the year
included one (2019: one) director whose emoluments are set out
in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four)
highest paid employees are as follows:

RKE &I

FABEBHBERRER(ZF—N
FOE) G NFEHEB BEBREKMANK
B (CE— NG E)RAREH
R

hE&R=#HER

FRN AEEREHERFEERE —
Z(ZE-—NF:—RB)EF HB2
FIEARMF14 - EpUE (ZE— N
FNA)EaHEECHMeFER
HanT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RMREYEF
in kind 4,171,436 3,970,755
Performance related bonuses FRIRMBBIELL 607,413 =
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFHEIE K 270,904 386,259
5,049,753 4,357,014

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020



13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(B)

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd) B

The emoluments of the remaining four (2019: four) highest paid
employees fell within the following bands:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0007% 7T % 1,500,000 7T
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007% 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
HK$2,000,000 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0007# 7T 22,500,000/ 7T

13. EEEFMAX(

=

/M=

hE&R=%HER (&)

EHfpUE (Z2—AF ME)&SH

et et 23

Number of

employees

EE A

EEHNMEN TUATEHE:
2020 2019
—E-NF
Number of
employees
EEAH
2 2
1 1
- 1
1 _

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ (A)
EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of every director and chief executive officer for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

14. EE®A R A=

EERITHREERME

BEFRTBEHBE T -ZF+=
A=1t—BILFENMSEIINAT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director/chief executive officer,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REMALNES TRAHSH (FRBFATSRNELT) FREARBCHARMHNE

Allowance
and
benefits  Performance Pension Share-
in kind related scheme based
Salaries (note (f) bonuses contributions payments
2R
BYEH REAR Bhe ARt
g (W&@) Te4L SEIfR BERNAR
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
# Ex T Ex T
Executive directors: BTES:
Li Sin Hung Maxim (note (a)) 3 (HiE ) - 173,556 - - 4,500 = 178,056
Xie Si Bl - 240,000 - - - - 240,000
Wong Kai Lun LG - 520,000 - 50,000 18,000 = 588,000
Lai Szu Yu BT - 240,000 - - 12,000 - 252,000
Ho Yuen May May (note (b)) sk (MEE (b))
(Chief executive officer) (77E#5) - 179,667 - 50,000 4,210 - 233,877
Independent non-executive directors: BIEHRTEE:
Fung Kam Man BEX 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei T4 120,000 = = = = - 120,000
Chan Tung Tak Alain RiEE 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Li Long £ 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo -3 120,000 - - - - = 120,000
Chief executive officers: TR
Ho Yuen May May (note (b)) s (Hzb) - 315,548 - - 10,234 - 325,782
Tsang Yan Kwong (note (c)) 2% () - 313,548 - - 39,194 - 352,742
Total ot 600,000 1,982,319 - 100,000 88,138 - 2,770,457

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements IR BRIV ET continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’'d)

(A)  DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS'
EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

The remuneration of every director and chief executive officer for
the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

14 EE/ARRE (&)

(A)

EERTTBRERME (F)

BEERTRARBE_Z—1F
+=A E‘f’*ElJJ:EJ%{E'\]@Hﬁ%kWﬂD
T

Executive directors: BTES:

Li Sin Hung Maxim (note (a)) ZH0k (@) - 910,000 - - 18,000 = 928,000
Wong Kai Lun 8k S 480,000 = 5 18,000 - 498,000
Cao Huifang (note (d)) E25 (M) - 80,000 - - - = 80,000
Xie Si #h - 240,000 - - - - 240,000
Lai Szu Yu (note (€) BB (3ke) - 160,667 - - 8,033 = 168,700
Independent non-executive directors: BIEHTEE:

Fung Kam Man BiX 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei Et 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Chan Tung Tak Alain RiE 120,000 - - - - = 120,000
Li Long ] 120,000 = = = = - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo 2R 120,000 - - - - - 120,000
Chief executive officer: s

Tsang Yan Kwong (note (c) B (HEO) - 1,560,000 84,500 - 180,000 = 1,824,500
Total ok 600,000 3,430,667 84,500 - 224,033 - 4,339,200

Notes: B 5

(a) Deceased on 9 March 2020.

(b) Appointed as chief executive officer on 19 March 2020 and
appointed as executive director on 7 October 2020.

(c) Resigned on 19 March 2020.

(d) Resigned on 30 April 2019.

(e) Appointed on 30 April 2019.

) The allowance and benefits in kind refer to untaken leave provision
for chief executive officer.

There was no arrangement under which a director or chief
executive officer waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: Nil).

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020

(a) RZTE-TF= AN H#t-
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14.

15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

(B)

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company (including any person who
at any time during the year was a director) or the director’s
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the
year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$367,611,528 (2019:
HK$132,893,071) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 3,628,800,000 (2019: 3,628,800,000) in issue during the year.

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

No diluted loss per share are presented as the Company did not have
any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

14.

15.

16.

EEEMRAE (F)

EERRS ZHABHNERX
ik

ARAEZ (BRRFAEAEERS
EEZHEAADREETNHEER
BERFRIFAEMNFRDATE
A RBUHERFTA T BEAEEET
BHNBEARS ZHRAOTESR
BEERSEENEAMNES -

R 2.

EETEERBE-_ZT_ZEF+=A
E+—BEFE(ZE-AF - BE)MKRR
RS A ] B B o

BRER
SREAREE

EREABBDDERARRES AEH
FREE367,611,5288L (T —HF:
132,893,071 ) RFE AN D #1TE BN
19 % $43,628,800,0000% ( Z & — h 4 :
3,628,800,0000% ) 5t & -

SR EEE
HRARTRBE-_E-_ZTFER-_Z— A

F+ZA=+—HIEWEFE L& EEE
EEEE R WA E25FREEEE-

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 ¥R 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZZT-_TF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

RYTP2 Yy
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% BERSKHE
Leasehold ~ Furniture and Office Motor
Buildings  improvements fixture equipment Computers vehicle
& FBR
[ & hERE BEkE HOERE EL RE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
&R & &R & &R #ET
Cost RE
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-A%-A-A 187,561 5,556,010 1,018,329 1,157,842 3,221,009 260,000 - 11,400,751
Additions AE = = - 8,307 215,458 - - 223,765
Disposals e - - - (5,900) (26,041) - - (31,941)
At 31 December 2019 and RZF-NETZA=+-BR
1 January 2020 Z5-%%-f-H 187,561 5,556,010 1,018,329 1,160,249 3,410,426 260,000 - 11,592,575
Additions RE - 970,730 185,306 7,49 535,739 - 1,864,683 3,563,952
Disposals e - (1,275,170) (528,766) (783,034) (638,007) - - (3,224,977)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEE+ZA=1-8 187,561 5,251,570 674,869 384,709 3,308,158 260,000 1,864,683 11,931,550
Accumulated depreciation RitihE
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-N5-A-A 162,174 3,787,935 681,622 880,795 2,762,173 37917 - 8,312,616
Cherge for the year EREY 1875 1712119 282460 62,188 487,080 5,000 - 287603
Disposals & - - - (5.900) (26,041) - - (31,941)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=+-Ak
1 January 2020 ZTZ%5-F-H 180,930 5,500,054 964,082 1,137,083 3,223,212 102,917 - 11,108,278
Charge for the year FRZH 6,631 177,297 77,410 24,751 338,621 65,000 174,814 864,530
Disposal e - (ais0) (528766) (7829800 (638,00) = - )
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+-A=1-8 187,561 4,402,181 512,726 378,860 2,923,826 167,917 174,814 8,747,885
Carrying amount RaE
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF+-A=1-8 - 849,389 162,143 5849 384,332 92,083 1,689,869 3,183,665
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=1-8 6,631 55,956 54,247 23,166 187,214 157,083 - 484,297

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT—-F

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Cost
At 1 January 2019, 31 December
2019 and 1 January 2020

A&
R=ZZT—-h&—A—A8-
—E-AF+-A=+—-HR

18. FHEEE

Leasehold Lease

land property

HELH HEME

137

j%% ﬁﬁi@ﬁﬁ %E (continued #&)
F+-—RA=+—HIEFE

—Z-TF—H—H 1,618,044 6,194,308 7,812,352
Additions = - 7,973,656 7,973,656
Written off s = (3,290,558) (3,290,558)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZTF+=A=+—H 1,618,044 10,877,406 12,495,450
Accumulated depreciation HEHRE
At 1 January 2019 R-—FE—h&—H—AH 376,416 - 376,416
Charge for the year FRZH 43,534 4,878,268 4,921,802
At 31 December 2019 and A\ZE-NF+ZA=+—HR
1 January 2020 —E-ZTF—H—H 419,950 4,878,268 5,298,218
Charge for the year FAXH 43,534 5,267,432 5,310,966
Written off 1 8 - (3,200,081) (3,200,081)
At 31 December 2020 NR_ZE_FTF+=-A=+—H 463,484 6,945,619 7,409,103
Carrying amount ﬁEEE
At 31 December 2020 R-E=-EF+=-A=+—H 1,154,560 3,931,787 5,086,347
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+=ZA=+—H 1,198,094 1,316,040 2,514,134
The following table is the amounts recognised in profit or loss: TRAENBHEERANSRE
2019
—E-AF
HK$
Vowi
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEAENE 5,310,966 4,921,802

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$5,335,112 for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$5,240,259).

FEERBE-_Z-_ZF+-A=+—H
FTFERBEEMELANRERLERER

5,335 1128 L (=& —
JL) e

E—ERAEREEFRAR

JLE :5,240,259%

—T_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

18.

19.

20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of 4 months to 3 years (2019:
3 years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS - TRADING RIGHT

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has fully written
off a trading right of HK$3.10 million as a result of the derecognition
of the trading right of Asia Wealth Securities Limited due to the
cessation of the Securities Brokerage Business in mid-August 2019. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, no trading right was recognised.

LOANS RECEIVABLES

j %% ﬁ& ?E MUL %E (continued #&)

18.

19.

20.

EREEE (&)

RUMEFE  AEBE SR 2 ERES EHR
/‘fﬁﬁ‘*’\?’]ﬁi@fﬂ E=FNEEHR

E-NF:=ZF)FTL-HERRIDIRME
MEEER Y EETRGEREES - RE
EREHEFAETIIHENRORER A

SEEAAHNMERLETEA K AR HIH
TTRVEAR -

/\\\ﬁ/ﬁg g%*&
BE_Z-NAF+_-_A=+—HILFE

M%lEiiﬁzWﬁ%%%&mo,ooo,ﬁm'
E:%—ni/\ﬁqﬂﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁiﬂai
BrEMEUEEREMNAIEESFERA

B - R-_ZE-_TER_FT— ﬂ¢+ ﬂ

=+—H WMERIEIE-

FEWR & K

2019
—ZET-NEF
HK$
BT
Loans to customers BTEER 924,497,125 966,238,754
Accrued interest receivables FE W FE AT A B 42,131,754 48,663,938
966,628,879 1,014,902,692

Less: Impairment allowance on VA VA Y ob R IR
individual assessment (360,257,902) (2,959,703)

Impairment allowance on SR MR ERE
collective assessment (159,117,000) (213,887,000)
447,253,977 798,055,989

Analysed as: ly=%

Non-current FEMED 221,441,816 151,877,137
Current Eh 225,812,161 646,178,852
447,253,977 798,055,989

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

= =
20. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 20. ERER (&)
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans REB—HEBEESRKE N EKER &
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed ki EERBREREK - ERETHKRER
reqularly by management. BRAEER o
The loans receivables above were denominated in HK$. The credit quality PR ERAE T E BFRERNEE
analysis of the loans receivables are as follows: HENMmHET:
2019
—T-hF
HK$
EIT
Neither past due nor impaired Rig BRI sOR (A
— Secured — B 32,548,467 62,864,597
- Unsecured — fE KR 79,487,593 130,751,890
Less than 3 months past due BT E=EA 7,681,024 69,203,582
Over 3 months past due BEIRE=EA 11,877,698 569,908,192
131,594,782 832,728,261
Impaired (note) A (B EE) 835,034,097 182,174,431
966,628,879 1,014,902,692
Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivables for Ma: ERFHABERREEBIELBIKNEH
which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at year end BEOREBRERKE KRBT
date.
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large I £ 160 HR I A% R B A FE W GRIE B R % 3 B
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history WHEEREHNTRELNEFPEB-
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number £ %80 B8 37 /8 Rk (B 69 FE WO GRIE BE % B R R
of customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on SEERTAZARHENELPBE@A -REAT
past experience, the directors were of the opinion that no provision KB BRZEREBERE N IREHRERE
for impairment on these loans was necessary as these loans receivables D/ BHRON EELEEWRE NG E
would be substantially/fully settled subsequent to the reporting period ZEEBNEE A 2HKE  HEERA
or there had not been a significant change in credit quality that these BAR I E B RE RS-

balances were still considered fully recoverable.

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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As at 31 December 2020, amongst all past due but not impaired loans,
(i) a first mortgage loan of HK$1,823,656 was secured by collateral
with fair value amounted to HK$5,200,000; and (ii) a secured revolving
loan of HK$10,054,042 (at 31 December 2019: HK$23,945,757) was
secured by equity interest in a private company with value amounted
to HK$300,000,000 (at 31 December 2019: HK$60,300,183). Save
for the above, the Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the
remaining individually past due but not impaired loans receivables as at
31 December 2020, while as at 31 December 2019, a secured fixed loan
of HK$19,423,750 was secured by equity interest in a private company
with value amounted to HK$3,639,547 and a secured installment loan of
HK$1,737,398 was secured by insurance policies with value amounted
to HK$11,700,000.

The individually impaired loans receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivable was expected
to be recoverable. As at 31 December 2020, impaired secured fixed
loans of HK$84,000,000 (2019: HK$68,072,583) were secured by equity
interest in listed companies and equity interest in a private company
with value amounted to HK$33,943,228 (2019: HK$48,224,028),
and impaired secured revolving loans of HK$73,265,737 (2019:
HK$48,781,646) were secured by equity interest in private companies
and assets held by a private company with value amounted to
HK$62,732,366 (2019: HK$11,544,030). Save for the above, the Group
did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining individually
impaired loans receivables as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has pledged loans receivables
with aggregated amount of approximately HK$32,000,000 for a bond
payable described in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 S 84 55 3 2 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZZT-_TF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

20. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

20. EWWER (&)

21.

RZBEZZTF+ZA=Z+—H RAER
BHEARBRENERFT (VEXIEBER
1,823,656/ JL LA A F 1B A5,200,0007
THERREAEF: R()—FF K
EERE 10,054,042 T (R—_ZE—
+=—B=+—H:23,945,7578 L) LA B &
300,000,000 T (R=ZFT—NLF+=A
=+—H:60,300,183F L)W —MALEA
AIREEAEE R Ll BN R
F+ZA=+—H8 AEEWERHTER
B EYERENERERFETME
BR MRZT—-—AF+=ZA=+—8 —
SHEFETFEFK19,423,7508 LA EE
3,639,547 T — AL E R REERK
B R—E2E5EBESHER,737,398%F T
LA 111,700,000 TTH R B 1E A -

8 5 B 5 A FE U & R EL PR A B 75 R 2 /Y
REHEH AHET KD IS EKKE-
W—Z-_ZTHE+-_A=+—R0 BREHA
i & F & 584,000,000 T (ZE—H
% 68,072,583/ 1) A B {E33,943,228%
TE(ZZE— 4 48,224,02887T)M £
RERER —HELERAREERKA
kB E B K #EERER73,265,737%
T (=T — L5 :48,781,646/8 70) A B &
62,732,366/8 7T (ZE—NF: 11,544,030
BN ERARER —BLE QAR
BEEEABER -BRLMEN R_F=
TF+A=+—BERZZE—AF+=ZA
=+—A AEEVERBTELCHEN
ERE FF G T MEER -

RIZBE-_TF+-_F=+—HB A&£ECH

4R A B TS 3R 3K BT 5E23F7 it A9 FE (1 5 3
4858 49 /532,000,000 7T & & W B 7X -

%’A$EE‘I‘)\E£‘§E’9$E§§

2019
—F-NF
HK$
IT

Listed securities held for trading: BEEBEM FHHEA:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — REBLETHRARES 8,018,780 10,476,000

Analysed as: ==

Current assets MENEE 8,018,780 10,476,000

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT—-F

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Contd)

The fair values of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are based on

the current market prices of such equity securities as at the end of the

reporting period.

The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity securities

that offer the Company the opportunity for return through dividend

income and fair value gains. They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value measurements of the
Group's investment in listed securities classified as financial assets at

FVTPL are recurring and are determined using level 1 inputs (2019: Level

1 inputs).

LEASE LIABILITIES

E(E)

REBELTHORAZSFNORATEDERZ

j%% ﬁﬁi@ﬁﬁ %E (continued 18)
F+ZA=+—HIEFE

21. WA FEFAEENEHE

ERABHRBERRNORITHE-

tﬂ%mﬂﬁ%?aﬁf\tﬂiﬁx$ %E’Hxﬁ 75
Ok EYEEEHNMALRTEEE-

BREBRARR

%—ﬁ—%gﬁ—§*n¢+:ﬂ5+*

CAREEDEANATFEFABENSR
ﬁémtﬁmﬁhém NFEEFEBEE

M WERE - RBARE (=
E-RBABBEE-

22. HERE

At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

R-ZZE_FTFE+_A=+—8 EEENH

T-hE:

EBBENT:
2019
—T-hF
HK$
IT
Within 1 year —FRN 2,015,208 1,416,997
After 1 year but within 2 years —FHEMFER 1,372,752 =
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZBBRAFR 662,804 =
4,050,764 1,416,997
Less: Amount due for settlement BomBABEE TR TZEAR
within 12 months shown B H S E R RIE
under current liabilities (2,015,208) (1,416,997)
Amount due for settlement FMBEFEETAT_EAR
after 12 months shown DEA S E A
under non-current liabilities 2,035,556 -
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease REEBEMNMETHEEEERNX
liabilities range from 5% to 5.54% (2019: 5%). ] ?5%55.54% (ZE—NF:5%)

E—ERAEREEFRAR

—T_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & 84 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

22. LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 22. HERE (~&

The following table is the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

TERANEBHRERN S

Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFERAX 96,800 187,051
23. BOND PAYABLE 23. EfHEE
Movement of the bond payable is as follows: ENESEZ#EEHMT :

At 1 January n—H—H - -
Proceeds from issuance of bond BEHBITHEHRIE 10,000,000 =
Accrued interests FEEFLE 81,096 -
10,081,096 -

Less: Accrued interests recognised P FERH B A R E At FE R IE
in accruals and other payables REEETF B (81,096) =
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8 10,000,000 =

The balance is repayable within one year and shown under current
liabilities.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, First Credit Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, issued a bond with a principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 (2019: Nil). No transaction cost is attributable
to the issuance of the bond. The bond is secured by loans receivables
of the Group of approximately HK$32,000,000 as described in note 20
to the consolidated financial statement. The maturity date of the bond
is falling on the first anniversary of the issue date. The interest rate of
the bond is fixed at 8% per annum, and the interest is payable semi-
annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #575 84 7538 2R 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX

The following are deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the
Group:

24 EERE

NTRASERBZECHAEERAR:

Provision for

Accelerated impairment
tax on loans
depreciation receivables
nEB AT E i E
HK$
i b
At 1 January 2019 R=ZFT—hF—H—H - (3,107,251) (3,107,251)
Credited to profit or loss FRNEERKRPIA
for the year (note 12) (MFEE12) (520,656) (32,184,104) (32,704,760)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NAF+ZA=+—HEK
1 January 2020 —ZT-TF—HA—H (520,656) (35,291,355) (35,812,011)
Charged to profit or loss FREEERP R
for the year (note 12) (Hi3E12) 217,555 9,037,050 9,254,605
At 31 December 2020 RZZB-_TF+_A=+—8H (303,101) (26,254,305) (26,557,406)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for statement

of financial position purposes:

TR BHMRREMFNELEHIEEH
paRin

Deferred tax assets EERIEEE

26,557,406 35,812,011

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounting to HK$396,432,562
(2019: HK$34,848,011) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

PR HASR - H A A R TE R R AR I AROR -
A0 4 5L I8 E518396,432,5628 L (=&
— N F 134,848,011 B L) ERELEFHEE
E-BIEEBBAERALEE-

F-ERAEAESEARQF —ZT_FFEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

j %% ﬁ& ?E BN %E (continued #&)

25. KR AN RAE

2019
—E-NF
HK$
B IT
Authorised: ERE:
250,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 250,000,000,0004%
HK$0.02 each HRR0.028 T T B 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRERE:
3,628,800,000 ordinary shares of 3,628,800,0000%
HK$0.02 each FH%0.0278 T E B AR 72,576,000 72,576,000

26. RESERVES

(A)  GROUP

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 88 and 91 of this annual report

respectively.

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

() Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2014, the change
of the domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders. The change
of domicile of the Company was completed on 5 February
2015. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company may

be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and represented
the excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or

make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

26. & (

2 )

/=

(B) RBUEREM (&

(i)

(i)

E—ERAEREEFRAR

CENEEG

AEBNEREBEIRAAREE
BEARABROR _ZZTNF
ETmETEREMRELS B
BREAGFIRBOHB RN
BRAEEREARNRBIEARE
METHRARMEZ Z5H-

ARABNERFRHDRALREE
BREARRBRONR_-ZZTNEF
EMETEAREL EC
WHEHBRARERNESEE
FEBHARRIESRRME
THERAEEZE®E -

BARR

REBRARFNHARGRT
RAEEFTHEARRROER
FRATEX -

REBRE-NAN-FREE
BARBRBATHESIRTRR-
A HEEATBR  BIAR
ATFERFIRMKRE HAE
BABRBPELDIK
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The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations and
providing the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants. Eligible
participants include full-time or part-time employees, directors (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive directors)
and any consultants or advisers (whether professional or otherwise
and whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis or
otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor, contractor, supplier,
service provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”). The Share Option
Scheme was adopted on 24 November 2011 and, unless otherwise
terminated by the shareholders or the directors of the Company, will
remain in force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not, in aggregate, exceed 10%
of the issued ordinary shares of the Company as at the listing date of
the Company or the date of shareholders’ approval of a refreshment of
such limit in a general meeting of the Company (“Scheme Limit”). The
Scheme Limit was refreshed pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 June 2017 and the Scheme Limit as refreshed is 362,880,000
ordinary shares, which represents 10% of the issued ordinary shares
of the Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
aggregate number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group
must not exceed 30% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company
from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2= MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 27. BB fESHE

AR E e R R B (TRERRAERT &)
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12 B AR R AT B M AN 5 B ) HL b B BR M AT
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HIsk RN AR AR RS EEHN AR
P&l ([sTEIBREI ) EAEHTTRRD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 %5 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Share options to be granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval by all the independent non-executive directors of the Company
(excluding any independent non-executive director who is the grantee of
the options). In addition, any proposed grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, which would result in the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant representing in aggregate in excess of 0.1%
of the total issued share capital of the Company on the date of offer
and having an aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares on the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
such period as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company,
which period shall not be more than 14 days from the date of the offer.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during a
period as may be specified by the Board of Directors of the Company,
the expiry date of such period not to exceed 10 years from the date
of grant of the option. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
of Directors of the Company, there is no general requirement on the
minimum period for which an option must be held or any performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board of
Directors of the Company, but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company's shares on GEM as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of the share
options, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the
date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote

at shareholders’ meetings.

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme since its
inception.

27. BRESTE (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2= MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_FTF+_A=+—HIFE

28.

29.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2020, the Group had the following significant
contingent liabilities:

The Group’s external legal counsel advised that the Group’s loan
agreements which involve charging an interest rate at a rate more than
48%, but less than 60% per annum shall be presumed to be extortionate
and such portion of extortionate interest is potentially unenforceable as
determined by the court. Subject to the court’s consideration of facts
relevant to individual borrowers, this presumption may be rebutted if the
court, having regard to all circumstances, is satisfied that such rate is not
unreasonable or unfair. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum
exposure to such legal risk comprised its aggregate loans receivables of
approximately HK$0.12 million (2019: HK$15.86 million).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing debts as may
be appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
comprises borrowings and lease liabilities less bank and cash balances.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
retained profits and other reserves).

No change was made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

The externally imposed capital requirement for the Group is that in order
to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float
of at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public float
requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2020, 31.43%
(2019: 31.43%) of the shares were in public hands.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(A)  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

29.

30.

EXEBER (&

AEBRBERIRERARERRTHIFE
REEZPREY B s - MR E D25%H IR
MARREE -

AEBFTABRERMBEELEZEHIIR

FERABBRENERARNDEZNRE  ZR

RN AEERBEAFEAN—EFEARE

%N ABRREEZRK - R _TF+ =

A=+—H 2ARFREAKRMH31.43%
T —N%F:31.43%)°

THMIA

(A EETAEH

2019
—T-NF
HK$
BT
Financial assets: SRIEE:
Financial assets at FVTPL NATFEAAERNEHEE 8,018,780 10,476,000
Financial assets at amortised cost X AT EN SR EE 463,109,077 817,712,065
Financial liabilities: SRARE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR AT EN S FEE 16,391,933 2,824,882

(B)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(B) =TREMRERERERBR

FEBKLEEYIEBRTESRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2= MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_FTF+_A=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated

on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2019: 10% higher/
lower), loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$0.8 million (2019: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1.05 million). This is mainly due to the changes
in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
default on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses
to the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures are primarily
attributable to loans receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated with
loans receivables is mitigated because some of them are secured
over properties.

Loans receivables

The management estimates the estimated loss rates of loans
receivables based on historical credit loss experience of the
customers as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by the
customers to the loans receivables. Based on assessment by the

management, the loss given default is from 25% to 100%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

30.2®IAE(£&)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Loans receivables (Cont'd)

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers. The Group considers all
loans receivables (except for unsecured loans with small loan
amount) as doubtful if, on an individual assessment by way of
discounted cash flow, the repayment of principal and/or interest
has been overdue and may not be recoverable and the fair value
of the collateral, in case of secured loans, may not be able to fully
settle the amount of the outstanding principal and/or interest.
Such loans receivables would be considered as loss immediately if
the collection of the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
For unsecured loans with small loan amount, the Group considers
the loans receivables as loss immediately if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue and the collection of
the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.

The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for loans receivables using the Group’s credit rating

(B)

TREAREEERNMBE (F)

EERRNBENG (&
JEWE (&)

ERAEEEERREERN —#5
AEBHEZPRANDEEFR-
R R IR AR IR IR & & 77 sUETT AV
BIRTfE - A2 R/ HFBERE B H
Brrge @z e mEMam (MAsE
ERE ) R FEA B EEREBAE
BAREEARS R/RFIB - BIAEE
RRMEREER (NENEERE
REBEIN)BREE - T A e B H K E
rek/ LS EHREKERLZ
BrREBE-FOEEERERT S
WA R/ SFBEREBHATK
AR BB A KA S BIA
S E S RENER R

TERIBASRENEEFRR SRR
FHREERNEERREH:

system:
2020 2019
- et - —ENE

Average Average
loss rate loss rate HK$
EHBEE TFHBRE BT
Performing B4 7% 131,594,782 20% 832,728,261
Doubtful AR 58% 771,440,165 29% 180,280,145
Loss E#E 100% 63,593,932 100% 1,894,286
966,628,879 1,014,902,692

The expected loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
customers is updated.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is a higher risk that a prolonged pandemic
may lead to increase in credit default rates.

EHEBEEEDRBEEBARAFHA
MESBREOXRMGR IRBAN
B 2 R AN 5 45 ) BN AT JE 15 9 B AE 14
BREHAE - ERETHRTOE
NERE GRS EEPOEMER -

AR2019B R MEREFESIENRK
PHEIEEE AEEEEMNAFE
WIESEBEXR L ITERNEBERERH
SERRLEREEROEEMMNER

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH

151



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ¥ &
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT—-F

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

j %% $§ ?E BN %E (continued #&)

Ft-A=+—RLHFE

30.$BT A (&)
(B) w=mEREEBEZNMEBR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans receivables (Cont'd)

(a)

receivables:

The following table shows the movement in gross loans

EEERR
FEWRE

(@) TRIFEEER

(%&)

(&

KR ER G (&)

EEER B -

Gross loans receivables SR aE
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-N%E-A-AH 834,217,401 81,852,932 30,575,367 946,645,700
New loans/financing originated BRENTER/BE 426,098,727 - = 426,098,727
Loans/financing derecognised or ¢WHX/E1'J§ BB

repaid during the year BR/BE (MR

(other than write-offs) (320,119,856) (79,949,313) (3,526,251) (403,595,420)
Transfer to 12-month ECL ERZT_HARHEERE

(Stage 1) (5-K&) = S = -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZEEENEN2S

credit impaired (Stage 2) BEEESE (FZRR) (567,501,443) 567,501,443 = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BAZRERENLE

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEERE (E2RB) (153,336,939) (151,271) 153,488,210 =
Total transfer between stages RERCBNEREE (720,838,382) 567,350,172 153,488,210 -
Write-offs s S = (2,910,253) (2,910,253)
At 31 December 2019 and E“'—::f MNETZAZ+-BR

1 January 2020 “E-TF-f-H 219,357,890 569,253,791 177,621,073 966,238,754
New loansffinancing originated BERATER/BE 121,124,723 - - 121,124,723
Loans/financing derecognised or ERRUEEAREEBER

repaid during the year B/ BE (MER)

(other than write-offs) (98,108,421) (18,582,082) (2,242,668) (118,933,171)
Transfer to 12-month FCL ERZT_EARHEERE

(Stage 1) (£-KB&) = = - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZECENENEE

credit impaired (Stage 2) BHEESE (EZRR) (11,818,193) 11,818,193 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRZEEAENLE

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEEEE (E2RR) (112,810,733) (550,671,709) 663,482,442 -
Total transfer between stages XERzENERLE (124,628,926) (538,853,516) 663,482,442 -
Write-offs ik = - (43,933,181) (43,933,181)
At 31 December 2020 RZZFZZ4+-A=+-A 117,745,266 11,818,193 794,933,666 924,497,125
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 75
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans receivables (Cont'd)

(b)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances

is as follows:

30.$BT A (&)
(B) w=mEREEBEZNMEBR

j %% ﬁﬁ ?E MUL %E (continued #&)

(&

EERRNMBENE (&)

EREF (&)

(b) HEEHEESERENED
AT

ECL allowance RHEEBEREE
At 1 January 2019 R-E-N&-A-H 7,695,794 6,686,591 4,682,860 19,065,245
New loans/financing originated BERMIER /zﬂﬁ 3,935,034 - - 3,935,034
Loansffinancing derecognised FREERAACEERN

or repaid during the year B3/ BE (MERN)

(other than write-offs) (3,363,651) (6,343,077) (201,237) (9,907,965)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) BRET_AAEBEEEE

(E-BR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not @?&#EEWQE@%%@

credit impaired (Stage 2) BREEBE (E-RR) (4,775,335) 4775335 = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL B gmﬁﬁ’@ﬁﬂ

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEERE (E=RR) (1,017,876) (171,370) 1,189,246 -
Total transfer between stages EERANBREE (5,793,211) 4,603,965 1,189,246 =
Movements due to changes EERREZHERNEY

in credit risk 8,576,186 147,160,837 49,129,532 204,866,555
Write-offs ey = = (1,112,166) (1,112,166)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NE+ZA=+-BR

1 January 2020 i 11,050,152 152,108,316 53,688,235 216,846,703
New loansffinancing originated BERNHER/BE 10,337,109 - - 10,337,109
Loans/financing derecognised FREEEAXEBER

o repaid during the year B3/ BE (MERMN

(other than write-offs) (872,133) (4,647,306) (178,541) (5,697,980)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERET_HARMEERE

(E-BR) - - - -

Transfer to lifetime ECL not BRZEEENENZS

credit impaired (Stage 2) BHEERE (EZRR) (89) 89 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREEENEN2S

credit impaired (Stage 3) BHEERE (F2RR) (9,060,682) (147,461,010) 156,521,692 -
Total transfer between stages EESzENERAR (9,060,771) (147,460,921) 156,521,692 -
Movements due to changes RERREDEHNED

in credit risk (2,442,786) 1,147 312,230,906 309,789,267
Write-offs i = = (11,900,197) (11,900,197)
At 31 December 2020 “ToTEt-f=1-8 9,011,571 126 510362095 519374902

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2= MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—_T-_FTF+_A=+—HIFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Concentration of credit risk

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has certain concentrations
of credit risk as approximately 7% (2019: approximately 7%) of
the Group's loans receivables were due from the Group's largest
customer, and approximately 19% (2019: approximately 19%)
were due from the five largest customers determined on the same
basis.

Secured loans made up to approximately 21% (2019:
approximately 22%) of the total loans receivables as at
31 December 2020. Such collaterals comprise residential and
commercial properties and listed/unlisted equity securities pledged
against the balances. As at 31 December 2020, the fair value
of collaterals for the first mortgage loans which are mainly
residential flats based on its prevailing market prices amounted to
approximately HK$32.85 million (2019: approximately HK$42.65
million). The fair value of properties collateralised for the second
mortgage loans before discounting credit protections available
to the first mortgagees amounted to approximately HK$13.70
million (2019: approximately HK$14.50 million). The fair value/net
asset value of other collaterals which mainly include listed/unlisted
equity securities amounted to approximately HK$465.86 million
(2019: approximately HK$519.02 million).

Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there is no significant increase
in credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. For the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group assessed the ECL
for other receivables and deposits to be insignificant and thus no
loss allowance is recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

30.2®IAE(£&)

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers

to have low credit risk.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company. The directors
are responsible to ensure the Group maintains sufficient capital
funding and credit lines to meet liquidity requirements. This is
achieved by projecting cash flows on a regular basis. The accounts
department of the Group monitors and reports the funding needs

to management.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

(B)

TREAREEERNMBE (&)

EERRNMBENE (&)
RITAEER

AEBRBTEBMEENEERR
BER RERHF T AEBRREER
BUBETSEETIRAEEERTN
RITRERBE AKERRREZ
EERRRIE-

mEE L ER

nRBETREREASERERETER
HNREENRAR AREEERT
RES MEARARAKRRERD
B BEERDEcAR-BEERE
HMARAKESERFARNELARERE
ERENENRBESTE- R
REMBAREREMER -AKH
WEFHNEREcTEAMEREE
o

TRIVRAEEENTESBBERR
EHMROBTEOIEBER LR
BEORURREREBE (BELRA
HFEeg (B FEME)RBERE
HARMBRTHNEATONENZR) R
AEBANRNZTE HHMSE

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 ¥R 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZZT-_TF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

At 31 December 2020

RZB-%F+-A=+-H

Weighted
Average
Interest rate

M7=

30.2®IAE(£&)

(B)

On demand
or less than
1 year
BREXS
PR-%&
HK$

BT

TREAREEERNMBE (&)

mBELRER (&)

More than
1 year but Total
not exceeding  undiscounted
2 years cash flows
SR-% KTREE
BREEME nEAH fREE
HKS HKS HK$
ET #E ET

Carrying
amount

Consideration payable FERHRE 9% 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 1,059,958
Bond payable R ES 8% 10,800,000 - 10,800,000 10,000,000
Lease liabilities HERE 5.46% 2,091,600 2,290,097 4,381,697 4,050,764
Accruals and other payables S ERREMENTE - 1,185,191 - 1,185,191 1,185,191
Total ok 15,176,791 2,290,097 17,466,888 16,295,913
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-A=+-H

Lease liabilites HEBE 5% 1,426,581 = 1,426,581 1,416,997
Accruals and other payables JEEt B R R A ENTIE - 1,407,884 - 1,407,884 1,407,884
Total it 2,834,465 = 2,834,465 2,824,881

Interest Rate Risk ) 2 [ Bz

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash

flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes

in market interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises

primarily from lease liabilities, interest-bearing loans receivables,

bank balances-trust and segregated accounts and bank and

cash balances. Loans receivables and bank and cash balances at

variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow

interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The

Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the

interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by

management is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 38 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 30.&® I EH (&)
(B)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES B wRERETEBEZREE (&)
(Cont'd)
Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd) F &R b (4F)
Interest rate profile Fl B
The following table, as reported to the management of the Group, TREINRMAEEERE2HROME
details the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at HARAEEEROF R BB DTS

the end of the reporting period:

2019
—E-NF
HK$
BT
Fixed rate deposits/ BEFEER
(borrowings): (fE=) :
Loans receivables FEWRE R 964,747,738 1,013,003,053
Lease liabilities HEAE (4,050,764) (1,416,997)
Consideration payable ERTRAE (1,059,958) =
Bond payable ERES (10,000,000) =
949,637,016 1,011,586,056
Variable rate deposits/ FEFERER
(borrowings): (&) :
Loans receivables JEW B R 1,881,141 1,899,639
Bank balances RITHE R 14,055,084 16,800,951
15,936,225 18,700,590

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 75
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—HILFE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(B)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (B)
(Cont’d)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group's bank
deposits and loans receivables at floating interest rates.

Change in basis points

Effect on profit after tax
HiH&RR0ZE

j%% i&?ﬁ BN %E (continued 1&)
30.¢€® T A (&)

TREAREEERNMBE (&)

M ERERR (F)
HBEE T

REBRFEFETORITERIAR
ERERNEREDMEFIMT

Effect on equity
Higmnie

Bank deposits RAFR +/-50 +-50 +/-10,275 +/-84,005 +/-70,275 +/-84,005
Interest-bearing loans receivables Bl EHR +-50 +-50 +-7,854 +-7,929 +1-1,854 +-7,929
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change TSR ES>WER BENEEH

in the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expenses
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis was
performed on the same basis as 2019.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020

ERBRERARELE YERAREN
AEAEEAFAENRREAREAR
SEHBEAFENEEBNSRBTE.
AR B RRR B &R (R REEN)
MiFaanEoaAXBoBeESL
B BV B B ) o Bh R 5% B 0 e o B R
BRFBNRENMETAMELENR
SRMNERRM S HAEERBR
wmA (RRBEN) MRS E M

HEREBOMTZERBENREHE T
SRAXIRANEELBETMHE-
DITRE - T N FERMEEET -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE—-ZT—-F

31.

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

j %% ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ %E (continued #8)
F+-—RA=+—HIEFE

BMEETBHFELERBECHIK

TREAEEREETHMELABZE
HFE EERRERFRSEY -HEEH
EENBERRERECKKERRR
EREBBENAEESEERERERIA

ARETHNESRENGE-

Bond Lease
Consideration EVEL [ liabilities
[EVEL) (note 23) (note 22)
EftES HEAR
FEfHK(E (BaE23) (Pat22)
HK$ HK$
AT
At 1 January 2019 —-N¥-A—H - - 6,470,205 6,470,205
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEBEMAK = = (5,053,208) (5,053,208)
Interest paid EHE - - (187,051) (187,051)
Interest expenses FEFAX - - 187,051 187,051
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 —ﬁﬁﬂ'*ﬁ:ﬂ‘—ﬁ&
—“E-ZF-f—H - - 1,416,997 1,416,997
Proceeds from financing activities REEDFMERE 1,864,683 10,000,000 7,973,657 19,838,340
Early termination of lease agreement RAKEEERE - - (101,578) (101,578)
Payment of lease liabilities HEAEMNT - - (5,238,312) (5,238,312)
Payment of consideration payable ERRERMR (900,000) - - (900,000)
Interest paid ERFIE - - (96,800) (96,800)
Interest expenses FERX 95,275 81,096 96,800 273,171
At 31 December 2020 —T-ZF+-A=1+—H 1,059,958 10,081,096 4,050,764 15,191,818
Analysed by: 255:
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZE+-A=+—H
- Bond payable -ERESH - 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
~ Interest payable recognised ~REFBRREMER
in accruals and other payables FUBRER A ENFE - 81,096 - 81,096
— Lease liabilities -HEAE - - 4,050,764 4,050,764
- Consideration payable —ENRE 1,059,958 - - 1,059,958
At 31 December 2019 —NE+ZA=1+—H
- Lease liabilities -HEaE - - 1,416,997 1,416,997
E—ReRERARAR —T_TFFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #37 84 3% 3R 7R Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 AEARS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE ARBEZEERAEBNMSE
GROUP

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management FR - BEERHMFIEZEBEABNGFMHOT

during the year was as follows:

Short term employee benefits EEEERT

including salaries, bonuses, paid (BiEFH< 1B

annual leaves and sick leaves BHEBRERER) 2,682,319 4,115,167
Post-employment benefits B8 RIKEF 88,138 224,033

2,770,457 4,339,200

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= 84 55 3 22 MY 51 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_ZT_-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. KARIEEMBE A RIFE
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the RZBZ_ZTFERZZFE-NF+ZR=+—
Company as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: H ARREERBEREZZEMB AR
ESE RN
Place of incorporation/ Issued and paid up/ Percentage of ownership
Name of subsidiary registration and operation registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
ERAIL/ ERTRAR/
WEATEE ERREE D gRES KATEEHARES TEER
Direct Indirect
B &
First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands HK$150,000,000 100 - Investment holding
First Holdings Consortium Limited AERRES 150,000,000 7 REER
First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 = Inactive
E-ERE%(PE)ERAA & 17T TEER
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$90 100 - Investment holding
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited EBRTES 90% T REER
Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
ERE-ARERAR ARRREE %7 REER
Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Inactive
Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited AERTES 100% 7T hmex
First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 - 100 Provision and
arrangement of
credit facilities
F-ERMBERAT EE 153,550,0007 7T RERZHEERE
Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Inactive
Honour Event Limited EBRUES (E OEzx
Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 - 100 Securities trading
EHEERFERAT 3 90,000,0007 ErEE
First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive
E-ERUK (FE)ERAT &E 10,0007 T fEex
First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property holding
FERERERAR 30 1871 BENE

Note: Al the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

Mia: CAAEMNBARERBREEAR-

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5 S 87 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZZT-_TF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

=
34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND . ARTIHBERRERRFEEE
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY 3]

(A)  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A ARAHF BRI EK
2019
—ZT-NF
Notes HK$
B 5 BT
Non-current assets EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEBARKEE 72,731,282 222,731,282
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE -Ee R
other receivables H b Uk 3k 78 1,139,213 488,761
Due from subsidiaries JE W B /BB R I AR IE 387,584,221 485,685,939
Bank and cash balances RITRIR e 1,044,853 620,199
Total current assets MBEERE 389,768,287 486,794,899
Current liabilities mENEE
Accruals and other payables FE T B PR B H A JE < 5B 108,102 39,710
Due to subsidiaries JETH B R RIFUIE 788 20,241
Total current liabilities MENBELEE 108,890 59,951
Net current assets RENEEFE 389,659,397 486,734,948
NET ASSETS AEFE 462,390,679 709,466,230
Capital and reserves BEXRGHE
Share capital & A 25 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves R 34(B) 389,814,679 636,890,230
TOTAL EQUITY R 462,390,679 709,466,230

NR-BE-—F=A=-+=-AKESe
BE TERTHNEEREEZE:

Approved by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2021 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Wong Kai Lun Lai Szu Yu
HRR BT
Director Director

EE BE

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 7 iy
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE-ZT-_ZTF+-_A=-+—HILEFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Cont’d)

(B) MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVES

4. ARAMBRARRFREE
B (&)

ARAEBRD

%E (continued #&)

Share Capital Contributed  Accumulated

premium reserve surplus losses

Bt i (E ARG HARE 2ithsE

HKS HK$ HK$ HKS
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-n%-A-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (48,621,209) 659,780,738
Loss for the year ERER - = = (22,890,508)  (22,890,508)

At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-AE+ZA=+-BR

1 January 2020 ZZ5Z%5-f-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (71,511,7117) 636,890,230
Loss for the year ERER - - - (247,075551)  (247,075,551)
At 31 December 2020 R-F-F5+-A=t-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (318,587,268) 389,814,679

E-ERALREEERAR —FT-_BEFH
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Financial Summary (4 #¥ @B &

A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group's
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

BEASERECYBRRENEEREYREF
EAREBENMBEREAREE BBERERLEF
HEBINNBENT -ABEL FNEREEZY
BwER—&D -

BMBRE

Revenue, other income and Ugs - EAp A LA

other gains and losses RE s R B 1R 36,865,540 84,971,551 100,123,307 133,660,098 81,191,777
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELAT (518) /R F (358,389,707)  (157,326,068) 31,599,901 64,176,447 40,774,144
Income tax (expense)/credit B (%) /K& (9.221,821) 24,432,997 (5,674,308)  (11,270,017) (7,127,652)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(BE) /% (367,611,528)  (132,893,071) 25,925,593 52,906,430 33,646,492
(Loss)/profit and total UTALES

comprehensive (loss)/ (B518) /i F R

income attributable to: 21 (B1E) A

e
Owners of the Company ENUNGIE 2N (367,611,528)  (132,893,071) 25,925,593 53,177,690 33,646,492
Non-controlling interests el - - = (271,260) =
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE - BERERS

Total assets BERE 508,516,669 868,446,554 995,618,539 1,140,494,151  1,023,527,303
Total liabilities AEER (16,573,318) (8,891,675) (3,170,589)  (174,601,381) (98,115,879)

491,943,351 859,554,879 992,447,950 965,892,770 925,411,424

Equity attributable to owners of A EHEA A

the Company g 491,943,351 859,554,879 992,447,950 965,892,770 925,411,424
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